
2013 SENATE FINANCE AND TAXATION 

SB 2171 



2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

Committee Clerk Signature 

SB 2171  
1 /23/201 3  

Job Number 1 757 4 

D Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 5 7-02-08 .1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Testimony Attached 

Chairman Cook opened the hearing on SB 217 1 .  

Senator Klein introduced SB 2 1 7 1 .  

Pam Sharp, Office of Management and Budget- On behalf of the governor I would like to 
support S B 2 1 7 1 .  The expansion of the homestead tax credit was i ncluded i n  the 
governor's b udget. The $20 million is included in the tax departments appropriation b ill as 
well as everything that that signifies which includes expanding the income tax brackets, 
excluding social security income from the calculation and removes the asset test which was 
p reviously set at $75, 000. 

Josh Askvig, AARP- See attached testimony 1 in support of SB 21 7 1 .  

Chairman Cook - The other option is to expand the amount of tax relief somebody could 
get, we could expand the value of the home that is getting the break. That doesn't help 
more people; it just helps fewer people more. Do you g ive any consideration to that? 

Josh Askvig - Our  policy is pretty specif ic about broadening school funding to provide relief 
that way and then also using breaks and that generally we have found i n  our research 
those are the best ways to ensure that people who have more d ifficult times staying in their 
homes, l imited incomes, can stay in their homes for the duration if they can . So the 
p referred methods for us are the broadening school financing piece and circuit breaker 
p iece as contained in SB 217 1 .  

Senator Dotzenrod - It looks like from the numbers you've got here that we probably i n  N D 
have about 1 00 ,000 people that are 65 years of age o r  older. It looks like the majority of 
those people would be getting the benefit of this. Those 65 and older would qualify under 
the provisions that we have in this b ill so if  there is  over 1 00 ,000 we are probably looking at 
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60, 000-70,000 people or maybe more, will be getting it and how does that compare to 
where we are today? 

Josh Askvig - I  don't have the figures in front of me but they are probably in the red book 
and I'd be happy to look those up for you . We do believe it wil l greatly increase the people 
but you also have people who have been in their homes for years and years living on social 
security and their property values are going up as do the property taxes and they want to 
stay in  their homes and so if they can access relief programs with their abi l ity to pay and 
stay in their home, it  makes sense to us. 

Terry Traynor, NO Association of Counties - We think it's good public  policy but from the 
aspect of county social services where we are always challenged with keeping seniors in 
their homes, provid ing services that wil l be at least cost and best for them to keep them in  
home,  this i s  a piece of the puzzle that helps and we think this b il l improves that and for that 
reason we support it. 

Chairman Cook- Do you have any opinion as to the merit of making a l l  of our adjustments 
to the income brackets rather than to the taxable value bracket? Should we help more 
people or fewer people more? 

Terry Traynor - I don't understand the interrelationships of the value and the income 
thresholds wel l enough to know how that would affect. 

Senator Triplett- H as your department analyzed this b il l in terms of understanding how 
many people wou ld be affected by removal of the asset test? 

Ryan Raushen berger, Tax Department- I don't have any specific numbers in front of me. 
Both Marcy and Kathy Strombeck have looked at some numbers to come up with some 
estimates. The asset test has been one of the largest l imiters and does bring in a s ignificant 
amount of people because a lot of people are kicked out because of 401 K ,  all that gets 
counted in that. Also the increased values in homes in the western part of the state 
specifical ly. Home values have kicked out a lot of people for el igibi lity as wel l .  

Chairman Cook- You have mentioned the people in the western part, it's here in  
Bismarck/Mandan too where home values are going up where there i s  stil l a burden on a 
low income person because of that I've got to ask the question to what degree is there 
wisdom and adjusting somewhat the amount of taxable value that can be adjusted. 

Ryan Raushenberger- Like I said the home values have been increasing, really across 
the state, q uite q uickly and that does leave someone who was in the program one year to 
be kicked out without having any other factors change. Coming up with this concept, that 
was a sizable consideration in removing the asset test. As you mentioned another option 
wou ld be actual ly just increasing the asset test to a certain point, which cou ld a lso be done. 

Senator Mil ler- In regards to this whole b ill and the appropriation , its $20 m i l l ion , does that 
just run out and then no more program or are the counties going to be on the hook to pay 
this, or the state somehow if we have more than $20 m il l ion in costs. 
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Ryan Raushenberger- The $20 mi ll ion appropriation,  the way currently, the appropriation 
works for the program, some biennium's we end up having more savings than others and 
we have gone in for a def iciency appropriations in other biennium's. It  kind of depends from 
year to year. It is very difficult to hit it right on the spot because the way the law is written is  
that we do go into a def iciency state. Right now there is deficiency because of  the 
increased activity in the program and that wou ld continue basical ly looking at it  every 
b iennium and being either ahead of budget or under budget. 

Chairman Cook asked for more neutral testimony. 

Chairman Cook closed the hearing on SB 217 1 .  
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Explanation or reason for introd uction of bil l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax cred it; an d to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Committee Work 

Chairman Cook opened d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  

Senator Oehlke - Looking i n  the red book earlier today I d id f ind when they established 
that $ 1 00 ,000 l imit on the home valuation. That was done in 2005. 

Chairman Cook - Kevin Glatt suggested increasing it to $275,000 but include the home 
value. That makes some sense to me, I don't know if that is the r ight n um ber. 

Senator Mi l ler - Senator U nruh has a bil l dealing with the d isabled veterans' credit. I'm 
wondering in something like that shouldn't be considered when we are talking about this 
since they are in similar fashion. 

Chairman Cook- Yes 

Senator Mil ler and Senator Triplett volunteered to do some research on this subject. 

Chairman Cook closed d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Committee Work 

Chairman Cook opened d iscussion on SB 21 7 1 .  

There was very brief d iscussion . 

Senator Mil ler said h e  would bring amendments. 

Chairman Cook closed d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  
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Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Committee Work 

Chairman Cook opened d iscussion on SB 2171 . 

Senator Triplett- The bil l  that Senator Dotzenrod d iscussed this morning regard ing special 
assessments, it strikes me that maybe we should consider that one f irst. If there is any 
appetite on the committee for approving that, it seems l ike maybe they could be run 
together into one bi l l .  If I were going to approve g iving some kind of break for special 
assessments or incorporating that into the homestead credit then I would want to rethink 
the num bers on this one. Maybe they should be thought about together. 

Chairman Cook- That makes sense. I d idn't want to take action on this, before we wou ld 
we would take al l  the homestead tax credit bills and whether we deal with the other o nes 
individually or with amendments and dealt with them that way, it makes no d ifference. 

Senator Dotzen rod - Conceptually when we first began the homestead credit the idea at 
the time was you have some people who are on this lower end of the income scale a nd 
they could be put i n  a situation where they may have to consider moving. This was sort of a 
backstop to say if you are old and you don't have much money we will make sure the state 
isn't making your problems worse. It seems like what we are doing here now is kind of 
combining the things we wanted to do when measure 2 got beat this summer and try to find 
a way to get more property tax to more people, I get the impression we are combining that 
now with homestead credit because there is so many of these it appears to me, these 
brackets we are setting up ,  we are getting up into areas where there, these aren't situations 
where people are forced to live on beans and hotdogs to be able to afford their tax. I think 
we are getting a hybrid sort of approach here with these brackets. 

C hairman Cook- Do you think that is r ight? 

I 
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Senator Dotzen rod - I do think that if you combine a homestead credit program that does 
what it was designed to do, that is to keep people in their homes, I don't really object to the 
b rackets being where they are, but I think it's important concept to have in there and then 
do what we've done in the past with mill levy buy down so that there is a benefit that is 
spread out across the whole population, so if you have the 2 together I think that does 
make sense. You've provided a benefit to those on the low end but you've g iven everybody 
property tax relief. I am concerned that if you don't have an asset test, I do think that is one 
way you can separate out that group of people that are down there and rea lly kind of got 
their back against the wall when it comes to property taxes, I think that asset test I'd l ike to 
keep it in there for that reason . 

Senator Triplett - Agreeing with what Senator Dotzenrod said I think that when these 
things were put in place originally long ago the elderly were really among the poorest of 
people in this country and I think the demographics have changed pretty d ramatically and I 
think there's a n  awful lot of people over the age of 65 who are doing very wel l and so g iving 
an across the board exemption to everyone beyond the age of 65 seems a little 
d isingenuous in the sense that we are just putting the burden further on to the working age 
people who are pretty heavily burdened as it is. I think the asset test needs to be there and 
I'm comfortab le with the number Senator Miller has picked out, the $200,000. 

Senator Mil ler - We can refine that better . What it does is it takes you r home out of the 
equation but maybe we need to put something on the home, l ike $500, 000 or $200,000 or 
whatever. 

C hairman Cook- Doesn't that include the home? 

Senator Mil ler - The amendments I proposed would take your residence value, that 
wouldn't be part of the equation . It would just say you have $200,000 worth of assets, not 
including your residence. The current test would say your house is $ 1 00, 000 and $75, 000 
worth of assets, something to that affect. Maybe we could say your home can't be worth 
more than $250,000 and you can have more than an additional $200, 000 worth of assets. 

Senator Dotzen rod - We did get the suggestion from Kevin Glatt, he asserted that we 
needed an asset test and proposing putting in a $ 1 00,000 i ncrease which wou ld be 
$275,000 including the value of the home. 

Chairman Cook- Should income include social security? 

Senator Triplett- I don't know if it should or not but if we have social security in  the m ix 
then I think the number should be h ig her than if we had social security out of the mix. Once 
you start excluding something then you are going to have other people in trying to get other 
things. Maybe it's better to leave everything in and just set a dollar value. 

Vice Chairman Campbell - I l ike Senator Triplett's idea in that the elder ly, there's a lot of 
income d isparity. I think most of them either have low income or extremely high i ncome and 
I l ike Senator Miller figuring the $200,000. Question on the asset test, do they have to give 
a balance sheet then? How does that work? 
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Chairman Cook - I was going to call my tax equalization officer out of Morton County and 
suggest m aybe if  she could come up here and walk us through that. 

Senator Dotzenrod - If you look on page 2 l ine 22, any person claiming the exemption 
u nder this subsection shall sig n a verified statement of facts establishing the persons 
el igibi l ity. Whatever we set forth in here that's going to be reflected on what other sources 
of income, I'm sure there's a questionnaire, and it mig ht be good to even see what that 
looks l ike. 

Chairman Cook - I've seen it, I don't know to what degree it is audited. 

Donn ita Wald, Tax Department said the tax department audits those. 

Senator Oehlke - Do you suppose the average county has something similar to the 
farmers exemption form? 

Chairman Cook- I'm not sure if the homestead tax credit is a state form or not, I think it is. 

Senator Oehlke - Maybe just add another category to it or something. 

Chairman Cook- The top income bracket now is $42, 000-$50,000 . Those people get a 
20% reduction in  the taxable valuations up to a maximum reduction of $900 of taxable 
valuation. Is that bracket high enough if we don't include social security? 

Senator Triplett - It just occurs to me that we learned from our hearing from the fellow that 
testified for AARP that the average social security benefit is $ 1 2,600 so about $ 1 , 000 per 
month, but the lowest of the low income people who had lesser employment through the 
years would get less than that and people who had better jobs and therefore presumably 
more assets and other retirement possibly, maybe $ 1 ,400 a month in social security. By not 
specifically excluding social security but leaving a single number we are actually benefitting 
the lower income people, r ight? Because otherwise if you excluded it then someone who 
had more income could get the maximum benefit plus they get a h ig her level of social 
security whereas the lower income people would get the maximum benefit u nder this bi l l  
plus a lesser amount of social security. I think removing the reference to social security and 
leaving social security as part of the dollar value is actually a benefit to lower income 
people. 

Chairman Cook - They don't lose their benefit. The ones that are going to lose any benefit 
from this by taking out social security could very well be a higher income person. 

Chairman Cook closed d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Committee Work 

Chairman Cook opened d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  

Senator Mil ler - The only thing I'm addressing is the asset test, we can take that social 
security income out of the picture pretty easily I think (attachment 4). 

Chairman Cook - I'm going to try to get someone here to speak to us about the form. 

Don itta Wald, Tax Department- There is an inconsistency in this bi l l  on page 3 l ines 1 0  
and 1 1 . Line 1 0  includes social security; l ine 1 1  excludes social security from income. 

Senator Triplett- Personally I think it looks like what the proponents d id ,  just looking at the 
numbers that are currently in law versus what they've changed them to, it looks like they 
just went through and added $8,000 to each one. I would rather, without changing the f iscal 
note substantially just increase the bottom and decrease the top. (8:1 5) 

Chairman Cook - I don't know if I would be too eager to do that. You can still have the 
amendments d rafted and run them up the f lagpole here. 

Senator Mil ler - If we d id something like that I would like to take a better look, and I don't 
know if there is time to do that, but I would like to see more, something a bout an analysis of 
what's happened in  the economy and how it's affecting age groups. 

Senator Triplett- I appreciate your  request for analysis. I think in North Dakota rig ht now it 
would be really d ifficult because d ifferent communities are having such very d ifferent 
experiences. In Western North Dakota you can't afford to pay your property tax I g uess you 
sell you r house and leave town, that's what is actually happening out there. Our long 
sta nd ing desire with this homestead credit bill of allowing low income elderly people to stay 
in  their homes, I think there is nothing we could do that's going to counter act what's 

I 
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happening in Western North Dakota. We would have to do something much more d rastic to 
make a d ifference so I guess I'm thinking that doing something ,  the lower end of it will help 
some people somewhere, although maybe not in Western North Dakota. 

Chairman Cook - We can't forget to other option for these lower income people. This is a 
delicate issue. We don't have to be in a big hurry, let's make sure we do it right. 

Chairman Cook closed discussion on SB 21 7 1 .  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Committee Work 

Chairman Cook opened d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  

Senator Mil ler- I will move amendments 1 3.8 1 78.0 1 002 and further amend to remove the 
overstrike on line 1 1  and also remove the new language that's underlined. 

Seconded by Vice Chairman Campbell. 

Chairman Cook - People that are getting the homestead credit now would not get any 
more, correct? This bill just allows more people to get the homestead tax credit. 

Senator Dotzenrod - Page 1 ,  subparagraph 1 ,  we didn't change a nything; there's no 
overstrike or new language. That $ 1 8,000 it's a 1 00% reduction and up to the $4,500 in 
which is a $ 1 00,000 house. So that bracket we are not changing . Then we take the other 
brackets that provide a 20% payment, a 40%, a 60% and an 80% , those we move up. We 
are moving partial payments up into h igher levels of income. 

Chairman Cook- More people will be able to get the 80% , more people will be able to get 
the 60% and 40%. Then of course a whole lot more people will be able to get the 20%. 

Senator Dotzenrod - The proposed amendments that we have would bring the f iscal note 
down by having an income test in  there and including social security. 

Verbal Vote on Amendment 7-0-0 

Chairman Cook closed the d iscussion on SB 217 1 .  

I 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes : 

Chairman Cook opened discussion on SB 2171. 

Chairman Cook we've already got one amendment on here. 

Senator Triplett -I will move the amendment 13.8178.01003. 

Seconded by Senator Dotzenrod. 

Senator Triplett explained what her amendment does. (00:32) 

Senator Miller-Is there any idea what this would do? 

Committee Work 

Senator Triplett -I haven't asked for a fiscal note on it but since it starts from the same place as 
the original bill presumed and tightens it up a little bit my best guess is that it would be a tish lower 
but roughly in the same zone. 

Discussion followed on what the income amounts should be. 

Senator Triplett-I would amend my motion instead of .01003 to move amendment that would use 
the 26 through 42 increments. 

Seconded by Senator Miller. 

Verbal Vote on Amendment 7-0-0 

Senator Miller-I'll move a Do Pass as Amended and re-refer to Appropriations. 

Seconded by Senator Triplett. 

Roll Call Vote 7-0-0 

Carried by Senator Miller. 



lution No . :  SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Req uested by Legislative Co u ncil 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 
Expenditures $20,000,000 
Appropriations 

1 B. Cou nty, city, school district a nd township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 
Cities 
School Districts 
Townships 

2 A. Bill a nd fiscal impact s ummary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sectio ns: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. I t  
also removes the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant can own, currently set a t  $75,000. This 
section also removes a person's social security income from the income that is used in calculating if an applicant 
qualifies for the credit. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Reve nues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expe nditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 significantly expand the homestead credit and renters refund programs enabling most 
elderly citizens to qualify. It is very difficult to accurately estimate the likely fiscal impact of these provisions as there 
are many unknowns. 



C. Appropriatio ns: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for this expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Age ncy: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telepho ne: 328-340 2 

Date Prepared: 01/18/20 13 



13.8178.01004 
Title.02000 

Adopted by the Finance and Taxation 
Committee 

February 12, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2171 

Page 1, line 1, replace "subsections" with "subsection" 

Page 1, line 1, remove "and 5 "  

Page 1, line 5 ,  replace "Subsections" with "Subsection" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "and 5"  

Page 1 ,  line 6,  replace "are" with "is" 

Page 1, line 17, overstrike "eighteen" and insert immediately thereafter "twenty-six" 

Page 1, line 21, overstrike "eighteen" and insert immediately thereafter "twenty-six" 

Page 1, line 22, replace "twenty-six" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "twenty-six" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "fifty" with "forty-two" 

Page 2, line 24, remove the overstrike over ",A, person is ineligible for the exemption under this 
subsection if the value of the" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over lines 25 and 26 

Page 2, line 27, remove the overstrike over "homestead, exceeds" and insert immediately 
thereafter "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 27, remove the overstrike over "seventy five thousand dollars, including the value 

ef-.aAy" 
Page 2, line 28, remove the overstrike over "assets divested �.vithin the last three years." 

Page 3, line 1, remove the overstrike over "lt" 
Page 3, line 3, remove the overstrike over "t.-" 
Page 3, line 3, remove "�" 

Page 3, remove lines 5 through 24 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 
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February 12, 2013 2:05pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_26_023 
Carrier: Miller 

Insert LC: 13.8178.01004 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2171: Finance and Taxation Committee (Sen. Cook, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2171 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "subsections" with "subsection" 

Page 1, line 1, remove "and 5" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "Subsections" with "Subsection" 

Page 1, line 5, remove "and 5" 

Page 1, line 6, replace "are" with "is" 

Page 1, line 17, overstrike "eighteen" and insert immediately thereafter "twenty-six" 

Page 1, line 21, overstrike "eighteen" and insert immediately thereafter "twenty-six" 

Page 1, line 2 2, replace "twenty-six" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "twentv-six" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "fifty" with "forty-two" 

Page 2, line 24, remove the overstrike over ",", person is ineligible for the S*emption under 
this subseotion if the value of the" 

Page 2, remove the overstrike over lines 25 and 26 

Page 2, line 27, remove the overstrike over "homestead, exceeds" and insert immediately 
thereafter "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 2 7, remove the overstrike over "seventy five thousand dollars, including the 
value of any" 

Page 2, line 28, remove the overstrike over "assets divested within the last three years." 
Page 3, line 1, remove the overstrike over "fl:." 
Page 3, line 3, remove the overstrike over "J.:." 
Page 3, line 3, remove ".tl." 

Page 3, remove lines 5 through 24 

Renumber accordingly 

( 1)  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_26_023 
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2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Senate Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171  
02-20-201 3  
Job# 1 9223 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resolution: 

Relating to the homestead property tax credit 

M i n utes: See attached testimony 

C hairman Holmberg called the committee to order on Wednesday, February 20, 20 1 3  in 
regards to SB 21 7 1 .  All committee members were present. 

Brady Larson -Legislative Council 
Joe Morrissette- OMB 

Senator Cook District 34, Mandan: I am here to introduce the bill. The bill expands the 
five different income tax brackets. It is a homestead tax credit available to a lot more low 
income North Dakotans. We also increased the asset threshold. It came with a $20 million 
fiscal note. Some amendments should reduce the fiscal note. Earlier this morning, on SB 
2036 you were introduced to a second homestead credit, both credits would be available to 
a low income person. There would be two credits available. 

Chairman Holmberg :  There is also a renter's provision that did not change. 

Senator Carlisle: Social Security doesn't count as part of the income threshold right? 

Senator Cook D istrict 34, Mandan:  It does count in this bill. 

Chairman Holmberg :  For a number of years we allowed this to creep up. They would get a 
slight raise in social security and they graduate out of the program so the legislature over 
time has been sympathetic and watched that. 

Senator Robinson : Are we to assume the fiscal note dated January 1 5th for $20 million is 
current? 

Chairman Holm berg :  We are printing a revised fiscal note just over $ 1 5  million. 



Senate Appropriations Com m ittee 
S B  2171 
02-20-13 
Page 2 

Senator Cook District 34, Mandan: The bill was not written proper. It opens up a whole 
can of worms. Railroad retirement came to my mind. There is a tier one and a tier two one. 
It makes it a whole lot more complicated. 

Marcy Dickerson, State Supervisor of Assessments: On the renters, the only thing that 
d id change was their income was changed just as the homeowners was changed because 
that automatically carries through to the subsection that applies for renters. 

Chairman Holmberg: The property tax credit is filed at the city assessor. The renter's 
credit goes through the tax department. 

Chairman Holmberg: We will close the hearing on 2171. 

Senator Robinson: Moved a do pass. 

Senator Grind berg: Second 

Chairman Holmberg: Call the roll on a do pass on SB 2171. 

A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 0. 

Chairman Holmberg: Motion Carries. This will go back to finance and tax. 

Senator Miller wil l  carry the bill. 

The hearing was closed on SB 2171. 



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211312013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anti cipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $15,195,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa1y of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections oft he measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of engrossed SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and 
renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant can own, to $275,000 from the 
current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
.affected and any amounts induded in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when approp1iate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of engrossed SB 2171 will mean more elderly and disabled persons will qualify for these programs. 
Estimations are diffic ult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take advantage of the programs 
than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For this reason, we are 
estimating the impact of engrossed SB 2171 based on 75% of those that might be eligible for the program. This 
translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.880 million for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net 
increase of $15.195 million over the existing (budgeted) program of $10,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appro/)liations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also induded in the executive budget or relctes to a continuing approp1iation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If engrossed SB 2171 is enacted, a portion of this amount may be turned back at the close 
of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



Bill/ Resolution No.: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Reque�ted by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $20,000,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate pcJ itica/ 
subdAi ision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elder1y and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. It 
also removes the "asset test" that l imits the value of assets an applicant can own, currently set at $75,000. This 
section also removes a person's social security income from the income that is used in calculating if an applicant 
qualifies for the credit. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Pro.t ide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 significantly expand the homestead credit and renters refund programs enabling most 
elderly citizens to qualify. It is very difficult to accurately estimate the likely fiscal impact of these provisions as there 
are many unknowns. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is a/ so included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropri ation. 

T here is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for this expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



Date: d-..,- {b.O c.IJ 
Roll Call Vote # / 

2013 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL V�TES 

BILLIRESOLUTION NO. i;(J 7 ) 
Senate Appropriations Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken D-P 
Motion Made By R� Seconded By 1-L � ��  .,--. ' .-1 

Senators Yes.A" No Senator Y�No 
II C hariman Ray Holmberg I// I I Senator Tim Mathern 1 v/1 
II Co-Vice Chairman Bill Bowman I , � I Senator David O'Connell 'y .---I 
II Co-Vice Chair Tony Grindberg lr/1 Senator Larry Robinson r/1 I 
II Senator Ralph Kilzer I"" ...-r- Senator John Warner 1/ I II 
II Senator Karen Krebsbach lv'"A I II 
II Senator Robert Erbele lr"_ 1/ I II 
II Senator Terry Wanzek I/ A I II 
II Senator Ron Car lisle lr I I II 
II Senator Gary Lee lVI I II 

Total f?J No (Yes) --------------------- ----------------------------

Absent 0 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 20, 2013 12:21pm 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_32_017 
Carrier: Miller 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2171, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (1 3 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2171 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep _32_017 



2013 HOUSE FINANCE AND TAXATION 

SB 2171 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Fi nance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171 
March 11, 2013 

Job #19681 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

A Bill relating to the homestead property tax credit. 

Min utes: Attached testimony #1, 2, 3, proposed amendment 
#4 

Vice Chairman Headland: Opened hearing on SB 2171. 

Josh Askvig, AARP: See attached testimony #1. 

Vice Chairman Headland: Could you give us an idea of how much the installation of the 
social security provision would cost? 

Josh Askvig: I don't have that at the top of my head. I know that the original estimate for 
the expansion or what was included in the governor's budget was $20 million. The current 
fiscal note with the changes the senate made lowered it to $15 million. It's in the range of 
$15-20 million. One of the things that is key is when you're living on $1,000 a month or 
$1,050 a month and that's your primary source of income any chance you can do to offer 
more relief and exempt that is a good thing. 

Vice Chairman Headland: Does the federal government have any provisions in their tax 
code that allows for a reduction of the social security from their tax form at a certain income 
level? 

Jos h Askvig : I don't know but I could look for you. 

Chairman Belter: Any further testimony in support of 2171? 

S usan Beehler, property taxpayer and a home owner i n  Mandan: I am in support of 
2171. I looked up the engrossment and it eliminated language that was already on the 
books. On page 3 section 5 all the definitions had been stricken out of the engrossed bill 
so I don't really support the engrossed bill but I support the original bill. On the senate side 
they took language out that was already in our century code. I'm concerned if that medical 
expense is taken out and not included on the income. I'm not sure if that affected people 
that are currently getting homestead credits so I would like the committee to find that out. I 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
S B  2171 
March 11, 2013 
Page 2 

don't know when this homestead credit was started but 65 is the age that was chosen even 
though for many people its age 50 to join AARP. Maybe instead of looking at it as solely 
from the income maybe it could be also an established residency related to the actual 
property because the homestead credit here just addresses something that really doesn't 
have anything to do with the property itself. You shouldn't have to move out of your home 
because your income from retirement or your medical expenses increase. It also says 
permanently disabled and I would really like the state to address an opportunity if someone 
has a temporary disability. I would like you to look at both the original bill and the 
engrossed bill and find out why they changed the dollar amounts and why they took a 
section in our century code out. 

Chairman Belter: Further testimony? 

Pam Sharp, Di rector of Management and Budget, on behalf of Governor Dalrymple: 
See attached testimony #2. 

Representative Zaiser: Do you know why the governor wanted to eliminate the means 
testing? 

Pam Sharp: He wanted more people to be eligible for the homestead tax credit. 

Chairman Belter: Any further testimony in support? 

Jon Godfread, Greater North Dakota Chamber: See attached testimony #3. 

Chairman Belter: Does your organization have a stronger support of the first engrossment 
than the original bill? 

Jon Godfread: Those are more policy decisions. We are supporting this as more of a 
measured relief that targets a population that was shown to be in need in Measure 2 so if 
the asset test is in there or not or what level it is we can leave up to this body to decide. 
We support it at the level it is currently at, right around the $15 million range. 

Representative Hatlestad: If you had to put a priority on removing the asset test or social 
security income, is there a priority/ 

Jon Godfread: The asset test would probably be number one but that would be up to this 
body. 

Chairman Belter: Further testimony in support of 2171? 

Claus Lembke, North Dakota Association of Realtors: We support 2171. 

Chairman Belter: Further testimony in support of 2171? 

Marcy Dickerson, State Supervisor of Assessments: See attached proposed 
amendment #4. This amendment puts the same language in at the end for the effective 
date that has been in every biennium that there's been a change to the homestead credit 



House Finance and Taxation Committee 
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Page 3 

except for one. This amendment just adds language to straighten out the payment dates of 
mobile home taxes versus real property taxes. That is because property taxes are paid for 
the year that has already occurred and your mobile home taxes are paid at the same time 
for the upcoming year. That language would make it possible to provide the benefit to the 
mobile homes at the same time it is provided to the regular real property. 

Representative Trottier: I suspect this would have to be changed from mobile homes to 
manufactured homes taxes? 

Marcy Dickerson: The mobile home chapter has not been amended to change it to 
manufactured homes. "Manufactured homes" is a more encompassing term. Mobile 
homes are manufactured homes so are modular homes. 

Chairman Belter: Any other neutral testimony? If not we will close the hearing on SB 
2171. 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171 
March 26, 2013 

Job #20457 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Min utes: � Attached amendments #1. 

Vice Chairman Headland: There's a tax department amendment that was offered so I 
would move that amendment. See attached amendments #1. 

Chairman Belter: Page 3 line 6. 

Representative Owens: Seconded. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRIED. 

Chairman Belter: Representative Dockter, do you have amendments for this? 

Representative Dockter: I'm still waiting on them. 

Vice Chairman Headland: What are you trying to do? 

Representative Dockter: Changing the brackets. 

Chairman Belter: When are you going to get those? 

Representative Dockter: Sometime today. 

Chairman Belter: We will hold this then. 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
Fort Totten Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171 
March 27, 2013 

Job #20541 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature fV\ 
Min utes: Attached amendments #1. 

Representative Dockter: Distributed amendments .02001 and explained. See attached 
amendments #1. 

Chairman Belter: Did you do a certain percentage? 

Representative Dockter: Yes, I went in between. Continued explaining the proposed 
amendments. 

Representative Drovdal :  We had a prepared amendment from the tax commissioner that 
was handed out during the hearing. Do you want that included? 

Representative Dockter: Yes we need that for the effective date. 

Vice Chairman Headland: We put that on yesterday. 

Chairman Belter: The tax department couldn't get you a fiscal note? 

Representative Dockter: The original fiscal note from the governor was $20 million and 
his bill had no asset test exempting all social security then the brackets he had originally. 
The senate made bracket changes by increasing them and made the asset test $275,000 
and counting the all the social security the fiscal note came in at $15 million. Then I talked 
to the tax department and they thought it would come in somewhere around the senate but 
they weren't sure how many seniors are going to take advantage and how many would 
qualify. We should be somewhere around the senate's fiscal note of $15 million. The tax 
department couldn't give us a fiscal note. 

Chairman Belter: But they were able to do one for the governor and the senate. 

Representative Dockter: I know but they were just uncomfortable saying the fiscal 
impact. 

Representative Kle i n :  What's the asset test now? 
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Representative Dockter: I made it an even $300,000. The asset test is the least fiscally 
impacted part of the bill. 

Vice Chairman Headland: What's your rational on adding the social security credit back 
in? Does it mirror what the federal government exempts as far as social security? 

Representative Dockter: When I first looked at it I wanted to base it on adjusted gross 
income. If you're a couple and over the age of 65 your first $21,800 of income is exempt 
and after that you start getting taxed on your social security. I felt that if you can exempt a 
little bit it gives them a benefit because then they will start getting taxed on their social 
security. That's why I brought down the brackets too because if you allow someone's 
social security to be exempt but bring down the brackets the income is going to go up and if 
they make too much income then they won't qualify anyway. 

Chairman Belter: Is there a motion to move the amendments? 

Representative Drovdal: Made a motion to move the .02001 amendments. 

Representative Klei n:  Seconded. 

VOICE VOTE: MOTION CARRI ED. 

Chairman Belter: What are your wishes on 2171? 

Vice Chairman Head land: I believe if we pass this it will have to go to appropriations. 

Chairman Belter: That is correct. 

Representative Zaiser: Made a motion for a Do Pass as Amended as Re-refer to 
Appropriations. 

Representative Dockter: Seconded. 

Representative Trottier: What's the downside of this bill? 

Vice Chairman Headland: The downside is the unknown cost. I think if we re-refer it to 
appropriations they will get a cost for us. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 1 1  YES 2 NO 1 ABSENT 

Representative Dockter will  carry this bi l l .  



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/1312013 

1 A. State fiscal effect Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $15, 195,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect Identify the fiscal effect on the approp1iate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, induding description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of engrossed SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and 
renters. It also expands the "asset test" that l imits the value of assets an applicant can own, to $275,000 from the 
current l imit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For infamation shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when approp1iate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of engrossed SB 2171 will mean more elderly and disabled persons wil l  qualify for these programs. 
Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take advantage ofthe programs 
than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For this reason, we are 
estimating the impact of engrossed SB 2171 based on 75% of those that might be eligible for the program. This 
translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.880 million for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net 
increase of $15.195 million over the existing (budgeted) program of $10,685,000. 

I 
I 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and approp1iations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If engrossed SB 2171 is enacted, a portion of this amount may be turned back at the close 
of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



Bill/ Resolution No.: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Reque�ted by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $20,000,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provi:Je a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elder1y and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provi:Je a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. It 
also removes the "asset test" that l imits the value of assets an applicant can own, currently set at $75,000. This 
section also removes a person's social security income from the income that is used in calculating if an applicant 
qualifies for the credit. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provi:Je detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and a ny amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included i1 the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Pro.ti:Je detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 significantly expand the homestead credit and renters refund programs enabling most 
elderly citizens to qualify. It is very difficult to accurately estimate the likely fiscal impact of these provisions as there 
are many unknowns. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. PrrNide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriaUon is also included in the executive budget or relates to a conUnuing appropriaUon. 

T here is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for this expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



1 3 . 8 1 78. 02002 
Title. 03000 

Adopted by the Finance and Taxation 
Committee 

March 27, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2 1 7 1  

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after the first " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 1 ,  replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 2, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "three h undred" 

Page 3, after line 4, insert: 

"5. For the purposes of this section: 

a. "Dependent" has the same meaning it has for federal income tax 
purposes. 

b .  "Homestead" has the same meaning a s  provided i n  section 47-1 8-0 1 .  

c .  "I ncome" means income for the most recent complete taxable year 
from all sources, including the income of any dependent of the 
applicant, and including any county, state, or federal public assistance 
benefits, sooial seourity, or other retirement benefits, and eighty 
percent of social security benefits, but excluding any·federal rent 
subsidy, any amount excluded from income by federal or state law, 
and medical expenses paid during the year by the applicant or the 
applicant's dependent which is not compensated b y  insurance or 
other means. 

d. "Medical expenses" has the same meaning as it has for state income 
tax purposes, except that for transportation for medical care the 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 78. 02002 



person may use the standard mileage rate allowed for state officer 
and employee use of a motor vehicle under section 54-06-09. 

e. "Permanently and totally disabled" means the inability to engage in 
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to 
result in death or has lasted or can be expected to last for a 
continuous period of not less than twelve months as established by a 
certificate from a licensed physician or a written determination of 
disability from the social security administration . "  

Page 3 ,  line 6 ,  after "201 2" insert " ,  for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable years 
beginning after Decem ber 3 1 , 201 3, for mobile home taxes" 

Renum ber accordingly 

Page No. 2 1 3 .81 78 . 02002 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
March 27, 2013 3:45pm 

Module 1 0: h_stcomrep_54_014 
Carrier : Dockter 

Insert LC: 13.8178.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2171, as engrossed: Finance and Taxation Committee (Rep. Belter, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the App ropriations Committee (11 YEAS, 
2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2171 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 , line 1 , after the first "1" insert "and 5" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" 

Page 1, line 4, after "1" insert "and 5" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four'' with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "thirty-four'' with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "forty-two" with "thirtv-eight" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "three hundred" 

Page 3, after line 4, insert: 

"5. For the purposes of this section: 

a. "Dependent" has the same meaning it has for federal income tax 
purposes. 

b. "Homestead" has the same meaning as provided in section 
4 7-18-0 1. 

c. "Income" means income for the most recent complete taxable year 
from all sources, including the income of any dependent of the 
applicant, and including any county, state, or federal public 
assistance benefits, social seourity, or other retirement benefits, and 
eighty percent of social security benefits, but excluding any federal 
rent subsidy, any amount excluded from income by federal or state 
law, and medical expenses paid during the year by the applicant or 
the applicant's dependent which is not compensated by insurance or  
other means. 

d .  "Medical expenses" has the same meaning a s  i t  has for state income 
tax purposes, except that for transportation for medical care the 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_54_014 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 27, 2013 3:45pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_54_014 
Carrier : Dockter 

Insert LC: 13.8178.02002 Title: 03000 

person may use the standard mileage rate allowed for state officer 
and employee use of a motor vehicle under section 54-06-09. 

e. "Permanently and totally disabled" means the inability to engage in 
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected 
to result in death or has lasted or can be expected to last for a 
continuous period of not less than twelve months as established by a 
certificate from a licensed physician or a written determination of 
disability from the social security administration." 

Page 3, line 6, after "2012" insert ", for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable years 
beginning after December 31, 2013, for mobile home taxes" 

Renumber accordingly 

( 1)  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_54_01 4 
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2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171 
4/4/ 13 

Job# 208 99 

D Conference Committee 

Comm ittee Clerk Signature 

A BILL for an Act to amend an enact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08. 1  of the 
North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to provide 
an effective date. 

Min utes: Memo #13.9629.01000 

Chairman Delzer called the committee to order and a quorum was declared. He went over 
some scheduling details. The committee will start with SB 2 17 1 .  

Rep. Headland (4:00) introduced the bill. It is the Homestead Property Tax Credit. The 
House Tax Committee looked at the income levels. We decided to reduce them from the 
levels that were sent over by the Senate by roughly 1 5% .  We also raised the asset test to 
$300,000 from $275,000. We allowed for 80% of the Social Security benefits to be taxed. 
The fiscal impact is an additional $14.6 million. The total cost of the program is about $25 
million. 

Chairman Delzer: (5:00) Did the Governor put this in with no asset test at all? 

Representative Headland:  That is correct, and he also excluded 1 00% of Social Security 
benefits from the income. 

Chairman Delzer: You've put the income on Social Security at 75%? 

Representative Headland: We exclude 20%. 

Chairman Delzer: In the first half the Tax Commissioners budget had $20M in. We took 
that out in the first half because we did not know where these bills were going. There were 
a couple of bills that we dealt with that had Homestead Tax Credits and Veterans' 
Homestead Tax credits. We will have to look in the conference committee whether they put 
that money back or not. The money should come close to matching what the latest fiscal 
note is. However, if we want to leave more money in there, it would be on a turn back 
status. We ended up about $3 million short. On the deficiency appropriation we had to 
deficiency appropriate for the Homestead Tax Credit. Do you know how this matches up to 



House Appropriations Com m ittee 
S B  2171 
04-04-13 
Page 2 

the H omestead and the Veterans' Tax Credit that we sent out in the first half, as far as our 
levels? Is the Disabled Veterans' on the same level, or a higher level? 

06:50 
Representative Headland: That is a question I cannot answer, but I can get the answer. 

Chairman Delzer: I think it was in 1 306. 

Rep. Bellew: Please explain the Social Security thing. 

Representative Headland: The 80% would be counted as income, and the income levels 
that are set for qualifying are all listed in the bill. Currently, they count 1 00% of Social 
Security as income. 

Chairman Delzer: This is all based off of the income level, asset test, and a certain 
percentage of the value of the home? 

Representative Headland: That's correct. 

Representative Glassheim: Why did we go u p  to $300,000 of assets? That seems high to 
me. 

Representative Headland: In  committee discussion, they believe with housing 
assessments and values increasing, it will to allow a few more people to stay in their homes 
that maybe don't have a level of income that can support them in their home. 

Representative Representative: On page 2, of the 03000 version, at the bottom in 
Paragraph G ,  it says, nA person is ineligible for the exemption under this act if the value of 
the assets of the person and any dependent residing with the person excluding the 
u nencumbered value of the person's residence.�� I don't think the residence counts in the 
$300,000. 

Representative Headland: You are correct, this is additional assets. 

Chairman Delzer: We've expanded this almost every time for the last four sessions. Where 
is our asset test at currently? 

Representative Headland: it is at $75,000. This is a pretty major expansion in this 
program. 

Chairman Delzer: The current budget number is $1 0M. I've heard concern that the $20M 
the governor put in would not be enough, doing totally away with the asset test. 

Representative Headland: I did not support this in committee, so you have me in an odd 
position. 

Chairman Delzer: The Senate brought it over at $275, 000 for the asset test. Why did you 
go up to the $300,000? Why not $200,000? It is still a large increase. 



House Appropriations Committee 
SB 2171 
04-04-13 
Page 3 

Representative Headland: I feel like I would need Representative Dockter to answer this 
q uestion. It was his amendment that I did not support. 

Rep. Jason Dockter, District 7: (1 1 :50) When I was talking to the state tax department, 
there are three issues: the Social Security, the brackets, and the asset test. The asset test 
d oes n ot have a fiscal impact as long as it is at a reasonable number. The Governor's first 
p roposal had n o  assets. It could be u nlimited and still qualify. It was felt that if we make it 
$300,000, the fiscal impact would be very minimal. The biggest impact is on the brackets 
and Social Security. When assets increase, the income will generally go higher. They 
would then be disqualified due to income and not receive the credit. That is why we 
b rought down the income brackets. 
Regarding the governor, the reason they had unknown before (on the fiscal note), is they 
had no asset test. That plan could have cost up to $40M to the state. They were u neasy 
having no asset test. 

Chairman Delzer: ( 1 4: 1 5) Is the $22,000 net or gross income? 

Rep. Dockter: I believe it is net. My original intent was to do everything off the adjusted 
g ross income, but the State Tax Department said that it doesn't work with their formulas. 

Chairman Delzer: Does this Fiscal Note fit where you think it is? 

Representative Dockter: Our goal was to make a different version to catch more people 
and h ave the same or less fiscal impact as the Senate. I think that was accomplished. 

Chairman Delzer: I'm surprised. If we are currently at $ 1 0,000 - 1 2, 000 with $ 1 8 ,000 as 
the low bracket, . . . . What did the Governor put it in  as, $26,000 and no assets? 

Representative Dockter: $26,000 was the last bracket. The Senate had it at $42, and we 
brought it back down to $38. 

Chairman Delzer: Not the last bracket, the first bracket that the Governor had. 

Representative Dockter: It was at $22,000. 

Sheila Sandness, Legislative Council, ( 16 :55) went over the original bill. It was $ 1 8,000 
in n umber one, in  number two it was $1 8,000 not exceeding $20 ,000 in the original law, 
and the Governor changed it to $26,000. I n  number three, it was changed to $26,000 and 
not in excess of $34,000. 

Chairman Delzer: The Senate changes were basically the asset test? 

Rep. Kempenich: Yes. 

Chairman Delzer: The asset test made that much of a difference, but lowering the brackets 
d oesn't make much more difference. That doesn't make much sense. We'll need to talk to 
Marcy (Dickerson?) about the Fiscal Note. 



House Appropriations Committee 
S B  2171 
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Representative Dockter: Using 1 00% of Social Security as income is another big 
d ifference. 

Chairman Delzer: The Senate put 1 00% back in? 

Representative Dockter: Yes, and then they moved the brackets up. We added the 20% 
of Social Security as an exemption, and moved the brackets down to get the fiscal n ote 
d own. 

Representative Boe: Did you run the numbers at $250,000 in assets, versus $300,000, 
and how d id that affect the fiscal note? 

Chairman Delzer: I think that was one of the problems, this Fiscal Note took two weeks to 
g et. I don't know how long it would take to get that number. We could ask for two or three 
of these for when it goes to Conference Committee. We have adjusted and adjusted and 
adjusted this credit. It has been part of our property tax package in the past. The way that 
we passed it out of the house, we were at $742 million in property tax relief on top of this as 
compared to $341 million last biennium. 

Representative Kempenich: The Senate's Fiscal Note without this is $500,000 less. 
Raising the asset is probably not the big issue on this. It's going $ 1 8  to $26 on the income 
side would make more difference than the income side. What the Senate d id by moving it 
d own five points took about $5 million off of it. You put 200 back in on the Social Security, 
and it didn't seem to make much difference. 

Chairman Delzer: Their reduction would have come from including 1 00% of Social 
Security, because most of these people are on Social Security. 

Representative Dockter: That's exactly right. It's the same with Social Security. The 
brackets really make a difference, the asset test does not. 

Chairman Delzer: If the Senate came over including all Social Security, why did you 
exclude 80% of it? 

Representative Dockter: My memo is to exclude only 20%. 

Handout distributed: (23:00) Memo 1 3.9629.01 000 



2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

House Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2171 
4/8/13 
20999 

D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signatur 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

Relating to the homestead property tax credit 

Min utes: You may make reference to "attached testimony." 

Chairman Delzer went over a few details of the bill. It changes the income levels to 22 for 
the lowest to 34 to 38 for the highest. It allows 20% of the social security money to be 
disregarded as income, and it sets the asset test at $300,000. I think the way the Governor 
put in $20 million might not have covered. We've adjusted this the last three sessions. We 
had to do a deficiency appropriation of $3 million more. I don't have a problem with going 
up with the income level. I have a little problem with the idea of disregarding some of their 
social security income, because it is income. 

Rep. Bellew threw a proposed amendment out there. On Page 3 of the House version, I 
would like to take that 80% of social security benefits out and put it back to the original bill. 
It would change it back up to 100%. I moved the amendment. 

Rep. Kreidt seconded. 

Rep. Sanford: My recollection is that the actions done by the House reduced the fiscal 
note and includes more people. I am hesitant to mess with any of these criteria given the 
fact that it doesn't cost us more. It costs us less. 

Chairman Delzer: It is still over and above what we currently have in the budget, so it does 
increase it by quite a bit. I think income is income. Social security is part of your income. 
Further discussion? 

A voice vote was taken and it was uncertain so a roll call vote was taken. The motion fails 
because it was 1 0-1 1 ,  1 absent. 

Rep. G lassheim moved the amendment to reduce the $300,000 down to $200,000 in 
assets. 

Rep. Boe seconded. 



House App ropriations Committee 
SB 2 1 7 1  
4/8/ 1 3  
Page 2 

Chairman Delzer clarified the proposed amendment after Rep. Monson asked what the 
effect is. 

A voice vote was taken and it was uncertain so a roll call vote was taken.  It resulted in 1 2-
9, 1 absent. Motion carries. 

Rep. Hawken moved a Do pass as amended. 

Rep. Glassheim seconded. 

A roll call vote was taken and resulted in DO PASS AS AMENDED, 19-2, 1 ABSENT. 
Rep. Glassheim is the carrier. 



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

03/28/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $14,600,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa1y of the measure, including desc1iption of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 
: ' . 

SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for 
elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a blief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the income brackets for computing the 
credit for both homeowners and renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant 
can own, to $300,000 from the current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Re\/enues: Expcin the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the exerutive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Pro.tide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments will mean more elderly and disabled persons 
will qualify for these programs. Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take 
advantage of the programs than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For 
this reason, we are estimating the impact of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments based on 75% of 
those that might be eligible for the program. This translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.3 million 
for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net increase of $14.6 million over the existing (budgeted) program of 
$1 0 ,685,000. 

. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and approp1iations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There was a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments is enacted, a portion of this amount 
may be turned back at the close of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/01/2013 



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

0211312013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $15,195,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa1y of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of engrossed SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and 
renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant can own, to $275,000 from the 
current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
.affected and any amounts induded in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when approp1iate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of engrossed SB 2171 will mean more elderly and disabled persons will qualify for these programs. 
Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take advantage of the programs 
than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset l imitations. For this reason, we are 
estimating the i mpact of engrossed SB 2171 based on 75% of those that might be eligible for the program. This 
translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.880 million for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net 
increase of $15.195 million over the existing (budgeted) program of $10,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and approp!iations. lndcate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relctes to a continuing approp1iation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If engrossed SB 2171 is enacted, a portion of this amount may be turned back at the close 
of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



Bill/ Resolution No.: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Reque�ted by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $20,000,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provi:Je a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elder1y and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provi:Je a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. It 
also removes the "asset test" that l imits the value of assets an applicant can own, currently set at $75,000. This 
section also removes a person's social security income from the income that is used in calculating if an applicant 
qualifies for the credit. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provi:Je detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and a ny amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included i1 the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Pro.ti:Je detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 significantly expand the homestead credit and renters refund programs enabling most 
elderly citizens to qualify. It is very difficult to accurately estimate the likely fiscal impact of these provisions as there 
are many unknowns. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. PrrNide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriaUon is also included in the executive budget or relates to a conUnuing appropriaUon. 

T here is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for this expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



1 3 . 8 1 78 . 02003 
Title . 04000 

Adopted by the Appropriations Committee 

April 8, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT S TO ENGROSSED SENATE B ILL NO. 2 1 71 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1 1 1 4  and 1 1 1 5  of the 
House Journal ,  Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2 1 71 is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 4,  replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 4,  after " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6 ,  replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 1 ,  replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 2, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "two hundred" 

Page 3, after line 4, insert: 

"5. For the purposes of this section: 

a .  "Dependent" has the same meaning i t  has for federal income tax 
purposes. 

b .  "Homestead" has the same meaning as provided i n  section 47- 1 8-0 1 .  

c .  " Income" means income for the most recent complete taxable year 
from all sources, including the income of any dependent of the 
applicant , and including any county, state, or federal public assistance 
benefits, social security, or other retirement benefits, and eighty 
percent of social security benefits , but excluding any federal rent 
subsidy, any amount excluded from income by federal or state law, 
and medical expenses paid during the year by the applicant or the 
applicant's dependent which is not compensated by insurance or 
other means. 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 78.02003 



d. "Medical expenses" h as the same mean ing as i t  has for state income 
tax pu r poses, except that for trans po rtation for medical c a r e  the 
person may use the standard mileage rate allowed for  state officer 
and employee use of a motor vehicle u nder section 54-06-09. 

e. "Permanently a n d  total ly disabled" means the inability to en gage i n  
a n y  substantial gainful activity by r eason of a n y  medically 
determinable physical or mental impai rment which can be expected to 
resu It in death or has lasted or can be expected to last for a 
continuous pe r iod of not less than twelve months as established by a 
certificate from a l ice nsed physician or a written determination of 
disabil ity from the social security administratio n . "  

P a g e  3 ,  l i n e  6 ,  after "2012" insert ", for a d  valorem property taxes a n d  for taxable years 
begi n n i n g  after December 31, 2013, for mobile home taxes" 

Ren umber acco rdingly 

Page No. 2 13.8178.02003 



Date: lf/Y/1 3 
Roll Call Vote #: -f----

House Appropriations 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 1.-ll / 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: 0 Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended � Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By �- '&,l{w 
II Representatives 
II Chairman Delzer 

II Vice Chairman Kempenich 

II Rep. Bellew 

II Rep. Brandenburg 

II Rep. Dosch 

II R_ep. Grande 

II Rep. Hawken 

I I Rep. Kreidt 

II Rep. Martinson 

II Rep. Monson 

II Rep. Nelson 

II Rep. Pollert 

II Rep. Sanford 11 Ree. Skarehol 

Total Yes 

Yes 
'{ 
X 
X 

'{ 
K 

x 

'{ 

y 

Seconded By g.<R.f· ,KV"(i d t 
No Representatives 

Rep. Streyle 
Rep. Thoreson 
Rep. Wieland 

X 

Rep. Bee 

'>( Rep. Glassheim 
Rep. Guggisberg 

'/. Rep. Holman 
Rep. Williams 

y 

'X 

Yes 
)( 
)( 

No II 
II 

X II 
II 
II 
II 

X II 
K II 
)( II 
K II 
X I I 

I I 
II 
II 
II 

/ No ------��------------�--------------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: 4/�/1) 
Roll Call Vote #: <-

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILLIRESOLUTION NO. 'VI 7 I 

_...;;._ __ 

House Appropriations Committee 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Action Taken: D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Amended lXf Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By R£{· &\rNSMAN\ Seconded By .......... � ..... '-· h""'-"'--"'�"-------
II Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No I 
II Chairman Delzer '{ Rep. Streyle )( I 
II Vice Chairman Kempenich j Rep. Thoreson )( I 
II Rep. Bellew X Rep. Wieland v I 
I I Rep. Brandenburg )( 

- I 
II Rep. Dosch X I 
II Rep. Grande y Rep. Boe X I 
II Rep. Hawken )( Rep. Glassheim )(" I 
I I Rep. Kreidt "';{ Rep. Guggisberg )( I  
II Rep.  Martinson ( Rep. Holman )( I 
II Rep.  Monson K Rep. Williams )( I 
II Rep. Nelson )( I 
II Rep. Pollert I 
II Rep. Sanford )C I II Rep. Skarphol \[ � 
Total Yes ! £....- No ----�------------�------------

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: Y lzf1 2 
Roll Call Vote #: -3;.......--

House Appropriations 

2013 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILLIRESOLUTION NO. 1)1 I 

D Check here for Conference Committee 

Legislative Council Amendment Number 

Committee 

Action Taken: I2S1 Do Pass D Do Not Pass � Amended D Adopt Amendment 

D Rerefer to Appropriations D Reconsider 

Motion Made By &-e.(" rb&wt.RAI\ Seconded By 4 &ftwh...e.dtn 
II Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No I 
II Chairman Delzer X Rep. Streyle £ 1  
II Vice Chairman Kempenich X Rep.  Thoreson X ' I 
II Rep. Bellew X Rep.  Wieland X I 
II Rep.  Brandenburg )( I 
II Rep.  Dosch X' I 
II Rep. Grande '{ Rep .  Boe X I 
II Rep. Hawken '{ Rep.  Glassheim )( I 
I I Rep.  Kreidt X Rep.  Guggisberg '{ I 
II Rep.  Martinson )( Rep .  Holman ')( I 
II Rep.  Monson X Rep .  Williams '{ I 
II Rep.  Nelson X I 
II Rep. Pollert I 
II Rep. Sanford '{ I II Rep. Skarphol y:· � 
Total Yes 

Absent ' 
Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment , briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 9, 2013 11:16am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_63_004 
Carrier: Glassheim 

Insert LC : 13.8178.02003 Title: 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2171, as engrossed and amended: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS (19 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2171, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 1114 and 1115 of the 
House Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2171 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 1, replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1, line 1, after "1" insert "and 5" 

Page 1, line 4, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" 

Page 1, line 4, after "1" insert "and 5" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6 ,  replace "thirty-four'' with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four'' 

Page 2, line 11, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "two hundred" 
Page 3, after line 4, insert:  

"5. For the purposes of this section: 

a.  "Dependent" has the same meaning it has for federal income tax 
purposes. 

b. "Homestead" has the same meaning as provided in section 
4 7- 18-0 1. 

c .  "Income" means income for the most recent complete taxable year 
from all sources, including the income of any dependent of the 
applicant, and including any county, state, or federal public 
assistance benefits, social security, or other retirement benefits, and 
eighty percent of social security benefits, but excluding any federal 
rent subsidy, any amount excluded from income by federal or state 
law, and medical expenses paid during the year by the applicant or 
the applicant's dependent which is not  compensated by insurance or 
other means. 

( 1 )  DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep _ 63 _004 



Com Standing Committee Report 
April 9, 2013 11:16am 

Module 10: h_stcomrep_63_004 
Carrier: Glassheim 

Insert LC: 13.8178.02003 Title: 04000 

d. "M edical expenses" has the same m e aning as it has for state income 
tax purposes, except that for transportation for medical care the 
person may use the standard mileage rate allowed for state officer 
and employee use of a motor vehicle under section 54-00-09. 

e. "Permanently and totally disabled" means the inability t o  e n gage in 
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected 
to result in death or has lasted or can be expected to last for a 
continuous period of not less than twelve months as established by a 
certificate from a licensed physician or a written determination of 
disability from the social security administration." 

Page 3, line 6, after "2012" insert ", for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable ye ars 
beginnin g after December 3 1 ,  2013, for mobile home taxes" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_63_004 
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201 3 SENATE STAN DING COMMITTEE M I N UTES 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

Committee Clerk Signature 

SB 2171 
4/16/2013 

Job Number 21185 

1Z1 Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08.1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date. 

Min utes: Conference Committee 

Present: Senator Miller, Senator Oehlke, Senator Dotzenrod 
Representative Owens, Representative Dockter, Representative Zaiser 

Senator Mi l ler opened the conference committee on SB 2171. 

Representative Owens - The House Finance and Tax felt the increases in the sections 
were way too high for a single increase. We lowered that but upped the asset test with the 
exclusion of the home and because so many are on social security we added the 20%. We 
reduced, as far as income of social security being counted as income to 80% of the value 
rather than 20%. There was talk about reducing it more but it became a give and take 
budget wise. That is why we did that. 

Senator M il ler - Did you have any conversations about somebody who might have a 
million dollar home and how that should play in to this? 

Representative Owens - Yes, that conversation did occur. Chances are if they've acqu ired 
that many assets then they are going to blow the $275,000 asset anyway in other things, 
plus they are sti l l  paying property tax on that asset. (3: 11) 

Representative Dockter - I was the one that looked at proposing the amendments and 
with talking to the tax department the asset test really does not have a big f iscal impact. 

Senator Mil ler - You changed the social security requirement, why? 

Representative Dockter - We thought the brackets that you guys proposed was too high. 
We thought we could reduce that but also by reducing that we could recapture some 
people by allowing some of their social security to be exempt. 



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee
SB 2171
4/16/2013
Page 2

Senator Miller - Does anyone know what our social security payments are?

Josh Askvig, AARP is going to find them.

Representative Dockter - The research that I did do on this, if you have a couple over the
age of 65, your first $21,800 of income your social security will not get taxed. Under this
scenario they wouldn't be taxed but once you go over that $21,800 they have a formula and
the IRS can tax up to 85% of your social security benefits. (6:00)

Discussion followed on social security.

Representative Zaiser - From my perspective and many on the committee was the fact
that more people would be impacted under the way we had made the changes. That was a
strong consideration.

Senator Miller - Do you think that with adjusting the brackets versus the 20% exclusion on
the social security isn't that just kind of horse-trading there?

Representative Dockter - Our goal was to try to capture as many people. By doing that
you might look at it as horse-trading but everyone's situation is different. (15:39)

Representative Owens - The income brackets include all income. What we were focused
on was trying to reach as many of those that are stuck on social security and with very little
other assets as much as possible and get them qualified so the more we reduce the
presence of social security being counted the more of those social security only folks we
bring in. You point about brackets versus the 20% for income, you are right, it's a tradeoff.
(17:22)

Senator Miller - The removal of the asset test did you have anyone run any numbers on
how that affected this?

Representative Dockter - The tax department was very uneasy with having no limit on the
asset test but when I gave them numbers like $400,000 it would have moved this 14.6. In
committee discussion $400,000 seemed a little high so we moved it back down to
$300,000. (18:36)

Senator Miller - If simply putting the exclusion of the social security in how the program
currently operates I'm wondering what that would do.

Representative Dockter - If you would exclude all social security the fiscal impact would
greatly increase and without having an asset test they said this was their best guess was
$20 million for the governor's budget. They said it could be $35 million or $40 million if you
don't have asset test at all. I think there should be some asset test but fiscally it doesn't
impact.

Representative Zaiser - The bottom line is getting as many people that could benefit from
this program and needed the benefits and really that is where we drew the line. We felt like
our approach was going to pull more people in to the program.



Senate Finance and Taxation Committee
S82171
4/16/2013
Page 3

Representative Owens - Can the Senate and the House agree that pulling the house out
is a good thing? That alone is going to be the largest determiner of how many people can
qualify.

Senator Miller - When we passed it out of the Senate Tax Committee I don't think our
intention was to pull the house out.

Senator Dotzenrod - Speaking personally I think it's good to get the home value out of
there. (23:22)

Senator Oehlke - When I look at the difference I remember previous testimony showed
that the average person gets about $1,000 a month or $12,000 a year social security
income. To remove 20% that's like only a $3,000 move on the bracket. But if you went to
50% on the social security that probably would open a few more doors for folks being able
to be eligible and might bring that fiscal note up closer to what we had it at to start with.
Just another option out there if we want to consider it.

Senator Miller - The other thing to think about too is everything else that is happening with
property taxes this session. We've got a lot of money going out in different bills.

Representative Dockter - That is a great point because this will be on top of any other
property tax relief that the state does give, this is another program in addition.

Representative Zaiser - I would like to ask Mr. Askvig if that $12,000 a year seems low to
me, is that in the ballpark?

Josh Askvig, AARP - 65 plus North Dakota residents received social security in 2011 and
in 2011 the average annual benefit was $12,900. (27:27)

Committee adjourned.
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Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
Lewis and Clark Room, State Capitol 

SB 2 1 7 1  
4/1 8/201 3 

Job Number 2 1 260 

� Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature /1. _ L ("} 1 \ ' " I" ��,4{_�'t¥11dlYl� 
Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08 . 1  of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead p roperty tax credit; and to 
provide an effective date . 

Min utes: Conference Committee 

Present: Senator Miller, Senator Oehlke, Senator Dotzenrod 
Representative Owens, Representative Dockter, Representative Zaiser 

Senator Miller opened the conference committee on SB 2 1 7 1 .  

Senator Miller - We are kind of waiting for things to happen i n  the Senate and the House 
before we move any way on the bill I think kind of want to know what the overall tax 
package is going to look like. (00:27) 

Representative Owens - In talking to everyone upstairs and Ms. Strombeck etc. and 
understanding i t  exactly I was correct the other day when I said that the biggest driver to 
getting more people was to reduce the social security as part of the income. Boy does it 
have an effect. (1 :48) 

Representative Dockter - I would agree with Representative Owens and also the fact that 
when you talk to the tax department we want to try to make it as simple as possible to 
process for people to fi l l  out the information .  (4: 55) 

Representative Zaiser - I would agree with that. I think often times the people that are 
going to be likely users of these are not going to be people that are going to take to 
complicated situations and if something is too complicated they are just going to blow it off. 

Representative Owens - If we as a committee were to agree on that change is that 
enough to move this forward or are you still looking to f ind out what happens? 

Senator Mi ller - I don't think there is much desire to go beyond what we've done here. I 
don't think we need to add more to this. 
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Representative Dockter - As far as the asset test when we brought the version out of our 
committee it was at $300,000 and appropriations actually put it down to $200,000. (7:50) 

Senator Oehlke - I think I need to exercise a little caution mainly because of what Senator 
Miller started off with. We've got at least 2 significant bills, HB 1319 is going to be h uge 
property tax relief in some way shape or form, we don't know exactly what it's going to look 
like, and I know there is another senate bill out there that gives basically a direct tax credit 
payment to folks, I can't remember if that's 1198 or 1250. Depending on how those 2 bills in 
particular shake out, and there are probably a couple others out there too that are also 
going to affect property taxes. 

Representative Zaiser - I would agree. To me I think we should just go slowly for a while. 
(9:24) 

Senator Miller - It would probably be worthwhile to run a few different scenarios moving 
these numbers around and try to figure out what these various numbers would be. 

Discussion followed . 

Conference committee adjourned . 
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Job Number 2 1 503 

[8] Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature � <::' b fl. I A r- I / -biD � - IL Lfdrk7 I //l_,L.-/ 
Explanation or reason for introduction of bil l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08 . 1  of 
the North Dakota Centu ry Code, relatin g  to the homestead property tax credit;  and to 
provide a n  effective date. 

Minutes: Conference Committee 

Present: Senator Miller, Senator Oehlke, Senator Dotzenrod 
Representative Owens, Representative Dockter, Representative Zaiser 

Senator M i ller opened the conference committee on SB 2 1 7 1 . 

Senator M i ller handed out attachment 1A. 

Representative Owens - I think it's very important that we ought to go ahead and consider 
pull ing out the House changes on the social security because the situation exists with 
pu lling the home out of the asset test. I think that is a huge change to the program and I 
don't think we know the effect that is going to have on the number of people that qualify. I 
think maybe returning social security back the way it was and leaving the house out of the 
asset test, we ought to let the program run l ike that for 2 years and see how many people 
come in to it and what this program really costs the state. It's a great program, but we don't 
want to get in a situation where we are going overboard and have got too many people in 
there and starts to cause a funding problem for the state, and second, a situation where 
some of those people may not actually, because of the way it's designed, start to get in it 
because of the levels and the house being gone and everything,  don't really need the 
benefit as much as those in the lower brackets. 

Senator M i ller - The main thing is understanding that we don't want this to balloon out of 
control because of the unknown variables but I think we have a fairly good idea here within 
this. 

Representative Dockter - I would like to make a motion for the House to recede and 
further amend. 
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Senator Miller - I think we all have the same general idea of what we want to do so I think
we will wait until we have the amendment in hand to do the final, we can talk about what we
want so we can get the amendments, we don't have to make a motion right now.

Representative Owens - Does the committee wish to discuss, if we are in general
agreement about social security cuts all we are doing is agreeing with the Senate. Would
you like to discuss a little bit about the brackets and find out where everybody is thinking
and where everybody would want to go so that we don't have this discussion later?

Senator Miller - Yes let's talk about that.

Representative Owens - From the House view your first 2 brackets we could entertain it's
just that we don't wish to raise that top end too much. Obviously the second one on your list
is what the House had passed out anyway I believe. The first one on your list is a little bit
more than the House but less than the Senate but it does increase that very lower level.

Senator Miller - One could say the top bracket there, that essentially is doubling the
program there. Do we think we want to stick within a certain range of income? Should we
say no higher than $40,000?

Representative Owens - I'm in agreement with that.

Representative Dockter -The fiscal impact is about $2.2 million because that $0 - $27,000
range they are going to get 100%. In our version we are at $22,000 but I do agree with
Representative Owens. Keep the brackets under $40,000.

Representative Owens - There is no way to know what people's assets are and they don't
report that so there is no way for us to determine how many people would qualify. That's
why I say it doesn't really matter where we put the asset test because until the program
operates for 2 years we will never know.

Conference committee adjourned.
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Job Number 2 1 531 

[8] Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution: 

A B I LL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08. 1 of 
the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
p rovide an effective date . 

Min utes : Conference Committee 

Present: Senator Miller , Senator Oehlke, Senator Dotzenrod 
Representative Owens, Representative Dockter , Representative Zaiser 

Senator Mi l ler opened the conference committee on SB 2 1 7 1 . 

Senator Mi l ler - We have amendments but they are all erred. I would like to work off the Senate 
version of the bill, the 2000 version. I've been talking with Senator Cook and some others, the idea 
of somebody qualifying for this with a million dollar home or something like that. It's probab ly very 
unlikely but I think we want to avoid that from happening so what I'm proposing is we inc lude the 
value of their home in the assets but we move the entirety of the assets up to $500, 000. We would 
leave social security in the equation and then adjust these brackets to, basically, the House version. 

Representative Owens - I find it hard to believe, there might be a straggler out there that would 
have a real expensive home but would still qualify based on their income. Generally if they've got a 
house that much their income is going to be much greater where they wouldn't qualify. What we 
were focused on in the House was the $75, 000 was a little ridiculous on assets when you only 
exempted $1 00, 000 of the home. Let's face it affordable housing now is basically $200,000 -
$250, 000. If you look at the $500, 000 as being $200,000 or lower of affordable housing and then 
$300, 000 assets, that's really where we kind of had it out of the policy committee anyway in the 
House. Having $500, 000 and including the home, I don't think is a problem. (3:44) 

Senator Mi l ler - No matter what we do there is going to be an issue of what is it actually going to 
cost. 

Representative Dockter - I agree we don't know what it's going to be but I think we've put enough 
safeguards in that we are going to have an idea after 2 years. (5: 04) 

Discussion followed. 

Conference committee adjourned. 
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Job Number 21623 

� Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introd uction of bil l/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 5 of section 57-02-08 . 1  of 
the No rth Dakota Century Code, relating to the homestead property tax credit; and to 
p rovide an effective date. 

M i n utes: 

Present: Senator Mil ler, Senator Oehlke, Senator Dotzenrod 
Representative Owens, Representative Dockter, Representative S. Kelsh 

Senator Mil ler opened the conference committee on SB 2 1 7 1 .  

Senator Mil ler handed out proposed amendments (attachment 2) .  

Representative Owens - We have the House version of the brackets, we have removed 
the home exclusion from the asset test, but we've increased the asset test to $500,000. I 
have no problem with this. 

Brief discussion followed. 

Senator Mil ler -I wil l  move that the House recede from its amendments and further amend 
(attachment 1 B) . 

Seconded by Representative Owens. 

Roll Call  Vote 6-0-0 

Committee adjourned. 



13.8178.05000 

Amendment to: Engrossed SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/30/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $7,770,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate pclitical 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa1y of the measure, including descn'ption of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 first engrossment with Conference Committee Amendments expands the homestead credit and renters 
refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 first engrossment with Conference Committee Amendments expands the income brackets for 
computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets 
an applicant can own, to $500,000 from the current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1 A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 first engrossment with Conference Committee Amendments will mean more elderly and 
disabled persons will qualify for these programs. Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, 
fewer persons take advantage of the programs than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the 
asset limitations. For this reason, we are estimating the impact of SB 2171 first engrossment with Conference 
Committee Amendments based on 75% of those that might be eligible for the program. This translates into a 
program expansion to an estimated $18 .5 million for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net increase of $7 .77 million 
over the existing (budgeted) program of $10,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/30/2013 



13.8178.04000 

Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

04/09/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funcHng 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·201 7 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $14,600,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summa1y of the measure, induding description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (lirrited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for 
elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the income brackets for computing the 
credit for both homeowners and renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant 
can own, to $200,000 from the current limit of $75,000. The bill also excludes from income 20% of the social security 
benefits received by the applicant. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect i n 1 A, pi ease: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments will mean more elderly and disabled persons 
will qualify for these programs. Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take 
advantage of the programs than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For 
this reason, we are estimating the impact of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments based on 75% of 
those that might be eligible for the program. This translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.3 million 
for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net increase of $14.6 million over the existing (budgeted) program of 
$10 ,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing approp1iation. 

There was a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments is enacted, a portion ofthis amount 
may be turned back at the close of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/1 0/2013 



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

03/28/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $14,600,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provi:Je a brief summa1y of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

· 

SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for 
elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provi:Je a b1ief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments expands the income brackets for computing the 
credit for both homeowners and renters. It also expands the "asset test" that l imits the value of assets an applicant 
can own, to $300,000 from the current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1 A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provi:Je detail, when approp1iate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provi:Je detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments will mean more elderly and disabled persons 
will qualify for these programs. Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take 
advantage of the programs than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For 
this reason, we are estimating the impact of SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments based on 75% of 
those that might be eligible for the program. This translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.3 million 
for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net increase of $14.6 million over the existing (budgeted) program of 
$10,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There was a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If SB 2171 first engrossment with House Amendments is enacted, a portion of this amount 
may be turned back at the close of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Offtce of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 04/01/2013 



Amendment to: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

02/13/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated undercurrent law. 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $15,195,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate pditical 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

Engrossed SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of engrossed SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and 
renters. It also expands the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant can own, to $275,000 from the 
current limit of $75,000. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of engrossed SB 2171 will mean more elderly and disabled persons will qualify for these programs. 
Estimations are difficult, and in the tax department's experience, fewer persons take advantage of the programs 
than would apparently be eligible, which could be due in part to the asset limitations. For this reason, we are 
estimating the impact of engrossed SB 2171 based on 75% of those that might be eligible for the program. This 
translates into a program expansion to an estimated $25.880 million for the 2013-15 biennium, which is a net 
increase of $15.195 million over the existing (budgeted) program of $10 ,685,000. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for the expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. If engrossed SB 2171 is enacted, a portion of this amount may be turned back at the close 
of the 2013-15 biennium. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Pre pared: 0 1/18/2013 



Bill/ Resolution No.: SB 2171 

FISCAL NOTE 
Reque$ted by Legislative Council 

01/15/2013 

1 A. State fiscal effect Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law. 

2011-2013 Biennium 2013-201 5 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues 

Expenditures $20,000,000 

Appropriations 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2011·2013 Biennium 2013·2015 Biennium 2015·2017 Biennium 

Counties 

Cities 

School Districts 

Townships 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

SB 2171 expands the homestead credit and renters refund programs for elderly and disabled citizens. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. lndude any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

Section 1 of SB 2171 expands the income brackets for computing the credit for both homeowners and renters. It 
also removes the "asset test" that limits the value of assets an applicant can own, currently set at $75,000. This 
section also removes a person's social security income from the income that is used in calculating if an applicant 
qualifies for the credit. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1 A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

There is $20 million included in the executive budget for the expansion of the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. 

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The provisions of SB 2171 significantly expand the homestead credit and renters refund programs enabling most 
elderly citizens to qualify. It is very difficult to accurately estimate the likely fiscal impact of these provisions as there 
are many unknowns. 



C. Appropriations: Explain the approp1iation amounts. Provide detail, when approp1iate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and approp1iations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing appropriation. 

There is a $20 million appropriation in the Tax Department budget for this expansion to the homestead credit and 
renters refund program. 

Name: Kathryn L. Strombeck 

Agency: Office of Tax Commissioner 

Telephone: 328-3402 

Date Prepared: 01/18/2013 



1 3. 8 1 78 .02009 
Title. 05000 

Adopted by the Conference Committee 

April 30, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2 1 7 1  

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1 239-1 241 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1 31 6  and 1 3 1 7  of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 
2 1 7 1  be amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 1 ,  replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 2, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 26, overstrike ",  excluding the" 

Page 2, overstrike line 27 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "homestead , "  

Page 2 ,  line 2 8 ,  remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "five hundred" 

Page 3, after line 5, insert: 

"SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective for taxable years beginning 
after December 3 1 ,  201 2. "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 78 .02009 



Date 4/30/201 3 __ � 

Roll Call Vote #_ 1 _  

201 3 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ___ 2 171  ___ as (re) engrossed 

Senate Finance & Taxation Committee ---- -----------------------

Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Motion Made by: 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 

D HOUSE recede from House amendments 

[gl HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree , recommends that the committee be discharged and 
a new committee be appointed 

Senator Miller Seconded by: Reeresentative Owens 

Senators Yes No Representatives Yes 

Senator X 
Miller 
Senator X 
Oehlke 
Senator X 
Dotzenrod 

Total Senate Vote 

Vote Count 

Senate Carrier 

LC Number 

LC Number 

X X X X X Representative X X X X X X Owens 
X X X X X Representative X X X X X X Dockter 
X X X X X . Representative X X X X 

· · • Zaiser 
· . ·. Representative X X S. Kelsh 

3 Total Rep. Vote 3 

Yes: 6 No: 0 Absent: 0 ------- ------ -----

Senator Mi ller House Carrier --�����--- Representative Owens 

of amendment 

_....:::O:::....=Z_,o�o=-.CZ�-.------ of engrossment 

No 



Com Conference Com nittee Report 
April 30, 2013 1:21pm 

Mod ule ID: s_cfcomrep_77_006 

Insert LC: 13.8178.02009 

R EPORT OF CONF ERENCE COMMITT EE 
SB 2171, as engrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Miller, Oehlke, Dotzenrod and 

Reps. Owens, Dockter, S. Kelsh) recommends that the HOUS E R ECEDE from the 
House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1239-1241, adopt amendments as 
follows, and place SB 2171 on the Seventh order: 

T hat the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1239-1241 of the Senate 
Journal and pages 1316 and 1317 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 
2171 be amended as fol lows: 

Page 1, line 16, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "th irty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1, replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "th irty-four" with "th irty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 11, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "forty-two" with "thirty-ei.Q.b!" 

Page 2, line 26, overstrike ", excluding the" 

Page 2, overstrike line 27 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "homestead,"  

Page 2 ,  line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "five hundred" 
Page 3, after line 5, insert: 

"S ECTION 2. EFF ECT IVE DAT E. T his Act is effective for taxable years 
beginning after December 31, 2012." 

Renumber accordingly 

Eng rossed SB 2171 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_cfcomrep_77 _006 
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SB2 17 1 - SUPPORT 
Wednesday, January 23,  201 3 

Senate Finance and Taxation Committee 
Josh Askvig - AARP NO 

jaskvig@aarp.org or 701-989-01 29 

Chairman Cook, members of the Senate Finance and Taxation Committee, I am Josh 
Askvig, Associate State Director of Advocacy for AARP North Dakota. We stand in support 
of SB2 1 71 . 

As you know, property taxes are the single most burdensome tax for many low-income and 
older homeowners. Many of our more elderly citizens have lived in their homes for a long 
time. As their property values have appreciated, so have their property taxes. But many do 
not have the income to afford the yearly increases in their property taxes while also 
meeting their basic needs for food, medicine and utilities. 

AARP Policy supports efforts for property tax relief provided in an equitable manner to low­
and moderate-income homeowners and renters. AARP supports "circuit breaker" 
measures, like the North Dakota homestead property tax credit. Circuit breaker programs 
offer property tax credits or homestead exemptions that decrease as income increases, 
resulting in a more progressive tax system. Therefore, lower-income households receive 
greater tax relief than higher-income households. Further, these programs are specifically 
targeted to low- and moderate-income households. 

About 33 states and the District of Columbia offer circuit breaker programs. Most of these 
provide tax relief to both homeowners and renters. Most of them are targeted to older 
homeowners and renters or provide more generous benefits to older homeowners and 
renters. Most circuit breaker programs are state-financed. 

The bill before you would implement the Governor's budget recommendation to expand 
the homestead tax credit to ensure more low- to moderate-income residents can access 
this beneficial and important property tax relief program. We especially like the provisions 
that increase the current sliding scale for relief; this fits with AARP policy that as your 
income is higher your ability to pay is higher and therefore your relief is lower. 

We also support the provision that eliminates Social Security from the definition of 
"income." Attached to my testimony is a state fact sheet about Social Security and 
Medicare in North Dakota As you can see, 92. 7 percent of North Dakota seniors, or 
90,700, received Social Security in 201 0. The average annual benefit was only $ 1 2 ,600. 
Further, low- and middle-income seniors in North Dakota are even more reliant on Social 



Security's earned benefit, typically receiving 77.5 percent of their ind ividual annual income 
from Social Security. 

This $20 mi l l ion expansion of the homestead tax credit is crucial, especially for those on 
fixed incomes who may be struggling to make ends meet. 

We strongly support SB2 1 7 1  and u rge you to g ive it a DO PASS Recommendation. 

I 



,, 

Why Social Security and Med icare are Vital to North 
Dakota's Seniors 

Seniors count on Med icare and Social Security benefits to provide them with the 
foundation of i nc ome and health care they need in retirement, havi ng contributed to these 
programs for years while working. In today's diffic ult economy-with widespread loss of 
retirement savings a nd h ome equity, coupled with rising health care costs-social 
Security and Medicare are more vital than ever. 

SOC IAL SECURITY in Nor th Dakota 

No rth Dakota senio rs count on Social Security benefits earned through a lifet ine of work 
• 92.7 percent ofNorth Dakota seniors, or 90,700, received Social Security in 201 0. The 

average annual benefit was only $1 2,600. 
• Social Security accounted for 60.7 percent of the typical older North Dakotans' own income . 

• Low and middle income seniors in North Dakota are even more reliant on Social 
Security's earned benefit, typically receiving 77.5 percent oftheir individual income 
from Social Security. 

S ocial Security plays an i mpo rta nt role i n  North Dakota's eco nomy 
• Social Security provided $ 1 . 5  billion in benefits to North Dakotans in 2009. 

M EDICARE in Nor th Dakota 

Med icare provides guara nteed health coverage , but o ut of pocket costs are h igh 
• On average, beneficiaries from North Dakota spent $4,900 on out of pocket health care 

costs. 

• For the typical North Dakota senior on Medicare, out of pocket spending for health care 
consumes 23.7 percent oftheir income. 

Medicare provides peace of mind for No rth Dakota se nio rs 
• Nearly 99.8 percent ofNorth Dakota seniors, or 94,704, were enrolled in Medicare in 

2009. 
• In contrast, nearly 1 0.7 percent of the 60-64 year olds are uninsured. 

Med icare plays a n  impo rta nt role in No rth Dakota's eco nomy 
• The Medicare program spent $0.82 billion on health care services for North Dakotans in 

201 0. 



1 9078 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council 
staff for the Taxation Committee 

October 2009 

H O MESTEAD PROPERTY TAX C REDIT - EXTENSION TO ALL 
RESID ENTIAL P ROPERTY - PROGRAMS IN OTHE R  STATES -

BACKG ROUND MEMORANDUM 

Section 3 4  o f  2009 House B i l l  No. 1 324 directs the 
Legislative Management to study the feasibility and 
desirability of providing a homestead credit for al l  
North Dakota residential property owners and 
occupants. Since 1 969 North Dakota has provided a 
homestead property tax credit for persons age 65 or 
older with l im ited income. Several states provide 
similar homestead property tax credits. Several states 
also provide a h omestead property tax credit that is 
available to a l l  homeowners without regard to income 
or age restrictions. It  appears it is the latter approach 
that the study directive is targeted to address. 

It appears the reason the study directive focuses 
on residential property relates to the disparity between 
the effective tax rates for agricultural property and 
residential property. "Effective tax rate" means the 
percentage that p roperty taxes paid are of the market 
value of the property. For 2007 the effective tax rate 
for the market value of agricultural property was 
0.81 percent, and the effective tax rate for market 
value of residential property was 1 .90 percent. I t  
appears the intention is that consideration should be 
given to the feasibi l ity and desirability of providing a 
residential homestead property tax credit to bring the 
effective tax rate for · residential property to a 
percentage that is closer to the agricultural property 
effective tax rate. 

H O MESTEAD PROPERTY TAX C REDIT 
Since 1 969 N o rth Dakota Century Code Section 

57-02-08 has provided a property tax reduction for 
persons age 65 or older with l imited income. As 
created in 1 969, the provision a llowed a person 
age 65 or older with an income of $3,000 or less per 
year from a l l  sources to claim a 50 percent reduction 
in the assessment up to a maximum reduction of 
$ 1 , 000 of assessed valuation on the person's 
homestead. This provision has been amended by 
29 bi l ls  since 1 969. 

The income l imitations in  Section 57-02-08. 1 have 
been increased by legislation approved in 1 973, 1 975, 
1 977, 1 979, 1 98 1 ,  1 985, 1 989,  1 993, 1 999, 2005, 
2007, and 2009. Other significant changes to this 
section include a matching credit and refund for 
renters added i n  1 973, state reimbursement to 
political subdivisions of property tax revenue losses 
from the credit approved in  1 973 and effective in 
1 975, extension of the credit in 1 975 to a person who 
is permanently and total ly disabled, a l lowance of a 
deduction from income for medical expenses in 1 977, 
adjustment of the basis of the tax credit .from 
assessed valuation to taxable valuation and 
proportionate reductions of the amount of credit 
a l lowed in 1 983. exclusion in 1 983 of the credit for any 

person whose assets exceed $50,000 other than the 
value of the homestead, exclusion of federal rent 
subsidies from income and exclusion of tax-exempt 
property from eligibil ity for the credit for renters in  
1 985, a llowance o f  the credit upon absence of the 

. person from the homestead for nursing home or 
simi lar care in 1 989, redefintion of permanent and 
total disabil ity in  1 993, an  increase of more than 
50 percent in  maximum valuations of the homestead 
to which the credit applies in 2005, an increase of 
more than 1 0 percent in maximum valuations of the 
homestead to which the credit applies in 2007, an 
increase of more than 30 percent in  maximum 
valuations of the homestead to which the credit 
applies, and an increase to $75,000 of nonhomestead 
assets that would disqualify a homeowner from the 
credit in  2009. 

U nder the current provision s  of Section 57-02-08. 1 ,  
a person who is age 65 or older or who is permanently 
and totally disabled whose i n come is $26,000 or less 
per year from al l  sources, including the income of any 
dependent, is entitled to a reduction in taxable 
valuation of the person's homestead. The exemption 
contin ues to apply if the person does not reside in the 
homestead and the person's absence is due to 
confinement in a nursing home, hospital, or other care 
faci l ity for as long as the portion of the h omestead 
previo usly occupied by the person is not rented to 
another person .  The reduction in  taxable valuation 
varies depending upon income as fol lows: 

Equivalent 
Maximum 

Maximum Reduction Maximum 
Reduction in True Percentage 
in Taxable and Full Reduction 

Income Valuation Valuation in Valuation 
$18.000 or less $4.500 $1 00.000 1 00% 

$18.001 to $3,600 $80,000 80% 
$20.000 

$20.001 to $2,700 $60,000 60% 
$22.000 

$22,001 to $ 1 ,800 $40,000 40% 
$24,000 

$24.001 to $900 $20,000 20% 
$26,000 

Over $26,000 $0 $0 0% 

A person claiming the homestead property tax 
credit exemption must sign a statement that the 
person is age 65 or older or is permanently and total ly 
disabled; that the person's income does not exceed 
$26,000 per annum; and that the value of the person's 
assets excluding the value of the person's homestead 
does not exceed $75, 000, including the value of any 
assets divested within the last three years. 
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An i l lustration of the effect of the homestead 
property tax credit may be useful in understanding 
how the credit appl ies. For the following examples, a 
home with a $ 1 00,000 true and ful l  value is assumed 
for each homeowner, and the 2008 statewide average 
mi l l  rate of 390 mi l ls  is applied to the property: 

Proper�y 
Property 

Taxable Tax 
Annual Valuation Without 
Income Reduction C redit 

Ho meowner A $ 1 7.500 $4,500 $1 .755 
H omeowner 8 $21 ,000 $2,700 $ 1 ,755 
Homeowner C $25,000 $900 $ 1 ,755 
Homeowner D $27,000 $0 $ 1 ,755 

H O MESTEAD PROPERTY TAX 
C REDIT FOR RENTERS 

Tax 
Savings 

With 
Credit 

$1 ,755 
$1 .053 

$351 
$0 

Any person age 65 or older or permanently and 
total ly disabled with an income of $26 , 000 or less per 
year from all sources and who rents I iving quarters is 
el igible for a refund of a portion of the person's rent 
deemed to constitute payment of p roperty taxes. 
Twenty percent of the person's annua l  rent, excluding 
federal rent s ubsidy and uti l ities, services, furniture, 
furnishings, or appl iances furnished by the landlord 
under the rental agreement, is considered payment 
made for property taxes. This 20 percent of annual 
rent, to the extent i t  exceeds 4 percent o f  the annual 
income of the person,  is refunded from the state 
general fund,  but the refund may not exceed $400. A 
husband and w ife who are l iving together are entitled 
to o n ly one rent refund.  The refund is n ot available for 
l iving quarters, including a n ursing  home, that are 
exempt from property taxes. 

STATE R E IMBURS E ME N T  OF 
HOMESTEAD PROPERTY TAX C REDITS 

U nder Section 57-02-08.2, s i,nce 1 975 the state 
has provided reimbursement to pol itical subdivisions 
for property taxes lost as a result of the homestead 
property tax credit, and the state has also provided 
reimbursement to renters el igible for refunds under 
the homestead property tax credit. Each county is 
required to certify to the Tax Commissioner the name 
and address of each person al lowed the homestead 
property tax credit for the previous year, the amount of 
the exemption, and the total of tax mi l l  rates against 
the properiy. The Tax Commissioner is required to 
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certify to the State Treasurer for payment to each 
county the amount of property tax excused under the 
homestead property tax credit. Renters entitled to a 
refund must apply annua l ly to the Tax Commissioner 
for refunds. 

The following table s h ows appropriations made for 
state reimbursement to political subdivisions and 
payments to renters for the homestead property tax 
credit for each biennium since the state began 
providing reimbursement: 

1 975-77 $3.286,014 
1 977-79 $2,900,000 
1 979-81 $3,550,000 
1 981 -83 $6,290,000 
1 983-85 $5.341,000 
1 985-87 $4,250,0001 

1 987-89 $4,706.0002 

1 989-91 $5.000.000 
1 991-93 $4.879, 1 63 
1 993-95 $5,375.000 
1 995-97 $5. 1 8 1 ,250 
1 997-99 $4,790.813 
1 999-2001 $4,540,813 
2001-03 $4,540, 8 1 3  
2003·05 $4,000,000 
2005·07 $4.000,000 
2007·09 $8, 1 04,000 
2009-1 1 $5.964,000 

1After a $750.000 reduction by the 1 987 Legislative Assembly. 

2After a $456.000 deficiency appropriation added by the 1 989 
Legislative Assembly. 

Senate Bi l l  No.  2402 (2009) substantially 
expanded the homestead credit and renters refund 
programs. The bi l l  substantially increased income 
eligibi lity for the homestead credit and renters refund, 
the value of assets that disqualifies appl icants, and 
the maximum annual refund to renters. The fiscal 
note for the bi l l  estimated an additional $3,823,000 
general fund expenditure for state funding for the 
program. The fiscal note stated that this additional 
amount would be needed on top of the $5,964,000 
contained in the executive budget.  However, the 
appropriation provided to the Tax Commissioner in 
2009 House Bil l  No. 1 006 was $5,964,000. It appears 
the appropriation did not take into account the fiscal 
effect of the changes i n  Senate Bi l l  No. 2402, and it 
appears l ikely that a deficiency appropriation wi l l  be 
required in 201 1 to ful ly fund the homestead credit 
and renters refund for the second year of the 
biennium. 
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The following table shows the n umber of claimants, 
total payments, and average payments per claimant 
u nder the homestead property tax credit: 

Qualifying Paid for Average Per 
Tax Year Homeowners Homeowners Homeowner 

1 975* 6,004 $650,693 $ 1 08 
1 976 6,738 $691 ,592 $ 1 03 
1 977* 9,663 $1 ,351 ,324 $ 1 40 
1 978 1 0,736 $1 ,556,881 $ 1 45 
1 979* 1 0,529 $ 1 ,582,655 $ 1 50 
1 980 1 0,633 $1 ,881 ,602 $ 1 77 
1 98 1 *  1 0, 1 58 $ 1 , 970,208 $ 1 94 1 1 982 9,4 1 1  $1 ,886,433 $200 
1 983 8,820 $ 1 , 841 ,081 $209 
1 984 8,206 $1 ,81 8,526 $222 
1 985* 7,362 $ 1 ,697,678 $23 1 
1 986 7,567 $ 1 , 987,970 $263 
1 987 7,540 $2,0 1 1 , 933 $267 
1 988 7,546 $2, 1 42 , 1 39 $284 
1 989 7,307 $2, 1 58,650 $295 
1 990* 7, 1 88 $2,336,992 $325 
1 991 7,029 $2,230,637 $31 7  
1 992 6,743 $2, 1 8 1 ,292 $323 
1 993 

3 

6,576 $2, 1 84,714 $332 
1 994 6,376 $2, 1 59,466 $339 1 
1 995* 6,095 $2, 1 94,689 $360 
1 996 5,680 $2,072 , 1 4 1  $365 
1 997 5,278 $ 1 , 974,283 $374 
1 998 4,943 $ 1 , 852, 1 24 $375 
1 999* 4,457 $ 1 , 8 1 7,552 $408 
2000 4,231 $ 1 ,814, 1 30 $429 
2001 4,341 $1 ,768,001 $407 
2002 4,060 $1 ,676,737 $41 3 
2003 3,923 $1 ,659,707 $423 
2004 3,817 $ 1 ,655,555 $434 
2005* 3 ,516 $2,025,060 $576 
2006 3,467 $2,008 , 3 1 0  $579 

2007* 3,466 $2,342, 1 86 $676 
2008 3,715 $2,396,968 $645 

October 2009 

Qualifying Paid to Average Per Total 
Renters Renters Renter Pa:tments 

414 $26 , 1 82 $63 $676,875 
508 $37,367 $74 $728,959 

1 ,325 $143,352 $ 1 08 $1 ,494,676 
2,301 $292,458 $ 1 27 $ 1 ,849,339 
2,572 $353,058 $ 1 37 $1 ,935,713 
2,594 $365,696 $ 1 4 1  $2,247,298 
2,635 $387,906 $ 1 47 $2,358, 1 1 4  
2,664 $414,429 $ 1 56 $2,300,862 
3 , 1 33 $51 6,244 $ 1 65 $2,357,325 
3,068 : $51 9,667 $ 1 69 $2,338, 1 93 
2,206 $159,713 $72 $ 1 ,857.391 
1 ,994 $161 ,905 $81 $2, 1 49,875 
1 ,878 $1 63,092 $87 $2, 1 75,025 
1 ,881 $163,357 $87 $2,305,496 
1 ,657 $149,666 $90 $2,308. 3 1 6  
1 ,601 $149,705 $94 $2,486,697 
1 ,582 $151 ,600 $96 $2,382,237 
1 , 534 $1 55,205 $ 1 01 $2.336,497 
1 , 563 $1 66,739 $ 1 07 $2,351 ,453 
1 ,626 $1 75,554 $ 1 08 $2,335,020 
1 ,590 $ 1 77,782 $ 1 1 2  $2,372,471 
1 ,499 $1 66,841 $ 1 1 1  $2,238,982 
1 ,482 $1 65,060 $ 1 1 1  $2,1 39,343 
1 ,454 $1 73,370 $ 1 1 9  $2,025,494 
1 ,508 $1 90,21 1 $ 1 26 $2,007,763 
1 ,471 $1 78,406 $ 1 2 6  $ 1 , 992,536 
1 ,329 $1 73,754 $ 1 3 1  $ 1 ,841 ,755 
1 ,288 $1 72,224 $ 1 34 $ 1 ,848,961 
1 , 335 $1.85,807 $ 1 39 $ 1 ,845,514 
1 ,332 $1 86,896 $ 1 40 $ 1 , 842,451 
1 ,273 $1 82,947 $ 1 42 $2,208,007 
1 , 302 $ 1 88,41 8 $ 1 45 $ 1 . 1 96,728 
1 ,998 $287,682 $ 1 44 $2,629,868 

2,051 $302,361 $ 1 47 $2,699,329 

*Denotes years in which income limitations for credits were increased. The 1 990 increase was approved in 1 989 legislation, 
the 1 995 increase was approved in 1 993 legislation, and an increase for 2000 was approved in 1 999 legislation. 

H OM ESTEAD C REDIT FOR 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

Under Section 57-02-08.3, a person who is 
qualified for the homestead property tax credit also 
may elect to qualify for a homestead credit against 
special assessments. The credit is available on ly for 
a n n ual installments of special assessments and must 
be claimed each year the applicant wants the credit. 
The total amount of credits allowed for any parcel of 
p roperty may not exceed $6,000, not including interest 
charged by the governing body levying the special 
assessment. The amounts claimed are to be reported 
by the county to the Tax Commissioner for payment to 
the special assessment district. 

The amount of the homestead credit for special 
assessments, plus interest of 9 percent per year, is a 
l ien in favor of the state against the property upon 
which the special assessment credit is a llowed. The 
l ien is generally payable from the estate of the 
claimant, and title to the homestead may not be 
transferred without the l ien being satisfied, u nless in 

the case of a transfer between spouses because of 
the death of one of them, in  which case the l ien need 
not be satisfied unti l the property is again transferred. 

PROPERTY AND INCOME TAX 
BENEFITS FOR H O MESTEAD 

P ROPERTY IN ALL STATES 
I t  appears the majority of states p rovid e property 

tax relief in some form targeted to a l l  residential 
property owners. The approach adopted is unique to 
each state, but all of the programs have in common 
an attempt by the state to reduce the burden of 
property taxes for residential property and ,  i n  many 
cases, residential rental property. 

It is impossible to provide a short summary of all 
state homestead credit p rograms because each 
program is unique and has extensive restrictions and 
l imitations. The following table is intended to briefly 
compare programs of all states to indicate e l igible 
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taxpayers, the kind of tax relief provided, and whether 
income l imitations apply for el igibility for the tax rel ief. 

Another cautionary note regarding reference to the 
following tab le  is that it is based on  the most recent 
i nformation available, which is for tax year 2007. 
Obviously, the  amount of relief provided by each state 

depends upon the fiscal health of the state. Most 
states have experienced sign ificant budget shortfa l ls 
in 2008 and 2009, and, as a result, many states may 
have been forced to reduce state assistance for 
property tax relief to an amount less than the 
2007 property tax relief reflected in the following table. 

State 
Alabama 
Alaska 
Arizona 
Arkansas 
California 
Colorado 
Connecticut 
Delaware 
District of Columbia 
Florida 
Georgia 
Hawaii 
Idaho 
Illinois 
Indiana 
Iowa 
Kansas 
Kentucky 
Louisiana 
Maine 
Maryland 
Massachusetts 
Michigan 
Minnesota 
Mississippi 
Missouri 
Montana 
Nebraska 
Nevada 
New Hampshire 
New Jersey 
New Mexico 
New York 
N orth Carolina 
N orth Dakota 
Ohio 
Oklahoma 
Oregon 
Pennsylvania 
Rhode Island 
South Carolina 
South Dakota 
Tennessee 
Texas 
Utah 
Vermont 
Virginia 
Washington 
West Virginia 
Wisconsin 
Wyoming 

Eligible 
All homeo\Mlers' 

Homeowners age 65 and older 
All homeowners 1 
All homeowners 1 
All homeowners and renters 1 

Homeowners age 65 and older 
Homeowners and renters age 65 and older 
Homeowners age 65 and older 
All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 
All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 

All homeowners 1 
All homeowners' 
Homeowners age 65 and older 
All homeowners' 

All homeowners3 
All homeowners and renters age 60 and older 
Homeowners and renters age 65 and older 
All homeowners 
All homeowners4 
All homeowners 1 
Homeowners and renters age 65 and older 
Homeowners and renters age 62 and older 
Homeowners age 65 and older 
Homeowners and renters age 62 and older 
All homeowners and renters 
All homeowners and renters5 

All homeowners 1 
All homeowners 1 

H omeowners age 65 and older 
Homeowners and renters age 65 and older 
All homeowners 1 
All homeowners 1 

None6 
Homeowners and renters age 65 and older7 

Homeowners age 65 and older 
All homeowners 1 

Homeowners age 65 and older 
Homeowners age 65 and older 
All homeowners8 

Homeowners age 65 and older' 

All homeoWners 
Homeowners age 65 and older 
Homeowners age 61 and older1 

Homeowners age 65 and older10 

Al l  homeowners and renters 1 1  

Homeowners age 65 and older 

Relief 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Property tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction2 

Assessment reduction 
Properly tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction and income tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Property tax credit 
Property tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Property tax credit 
Properly tax credit 
Income tax credit 
Income tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Property tax refund 
Properly tax credit 
Properly tax rebate 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction or refund 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 

Property tax rebate 
Property tax credit 
Assessment reduction 
Property or sales tax refund 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction and local option 
Properly tax refund 
Property tax deferral at local  option 
Assessment reduction 
Assessment reduction 
Income tax credit 
Property tax refund 

1 A larger assessment reduction is available for homeowners based on age and income qualifications. 

Income Limit 
No 
N o  
N o  
N o  
N o  
N o  
Yes 
No 
No 
N o  
No 
No 
N o  
No 
No 
N o  
N o  
No 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
N o  
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 

Yes 
Yes 
N o  
Yes 
Yes 
No 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
N o  
Yes 
Yes 

'Colorado homeowners or renters age 65 and older with limited income may also qualify for property tax, rent. and 11eating cost rebates. 
;'Maine allows additional tax credits for homeowners and renters who meet income limits. 
'Minnesota has a senior citizen property tax deferral program, a regular property tax refund program.  and a special property tax refund program 
with differing effects based on age. Income, and property tax levels. 

5New Jersey provides addilional property tax reimbursement for homeo\Mlers age 65 and older based on income eligibility. 
60regon allows homeowners age 62 or older to claim a property tax deferral if they meet income limits. 
7Pennsylvanla school districts also have the option of  offering an assessment reduction for homeowners without income limits. 
6Texas also al lows an additional assessment reduction for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled without income limits. 
0Washlngton also al lows homeowners an option to choose between two property tax deferred programs. 
10West Virginia also allows homeowners age 65 or older or disabled who meet income limits an income tax credit. 
"Wisconsin also a l lows homeowners and renters who meet income limits an income tax credit and al lows homeowners age 65 or older or 

disabled who meet income limits to claim a property tax deferral. 
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SUGGESTED STUDY A PPROACH 
It appears the intent of this study resolution is to 

d etermine whether it is appropriate to target property 
tax relief to residential property and bring the effective 
tax rate for residential property nearer to the effective 
tax rate for agricultural property. It appears most 
states have incorporated homestead credits as a 
component of their property tax structure, with tax 
rel ief targeted to resident homeowners in general and 
additional tax relief targeted to older and d isabled 
h omeowners. A large portion of these programs also 
target tax relief to residents who rent their primary 
residence. 

Significant changes in 2009 will affect the effective 
tax rates for a l l  property types. Senate B i l l  No. 2244 
(2009) reduces the capitalization rate for tax years 
2009 through 201 2 under the valuation formula for 
agricultural property which wi l l  tend to i ncrease 
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agricultural property assessments gradual ly for tax 
years 2009 and later. This wi l l  probably be 
accompanied by some s hitting of property tax 
burdens. Property tax relief of approximately 
$295 mi l l ion  provided by Senate B i l l  No. 2 1 9 9  (2009) 
wi l l  reduce the effective tax rate for a l l  property types. 
I ncreased el igibi l ity for the homestead credit wi l l  not 
reduce effective tax rates because the property tax 
reduction is paid by the state and wi l l  not be reflected 
as a property tax reduction.  However, h omestead 
credit benefits for sign ificantly more taxpayers and 
more tax relief must be considered as part of the 
property tax picture. It  wi l l  be necessary to await 
availabil ity of property tax statistics for taxable year 
2009 before effective tax rate comparisons and 
consideration of relative property tax burdens can be 
made. 



NOLA, Intern 06 - Hagel, Justin 

Subject: 

Begin forwarded m essage: 

Cook, Dwight C. 
Wednesday, January 23, 2013 1:47 PM 
NDLA, Intern 06 - Hagel, Justin 
Fwd: SB2171 Homestead Credit 

From: Kevin Glatt <kglatt@nd.gov> 

Date: January 23, 2013 12:10:24 PM CST 
To: <dcook@nd.gov> 

Cc: "'Terry 0. Traynor"' <ttraynor@ndaco.org>, 'AI Vietmeier' <avietmeier@nd.gov> 

Subject: SB2171 Homestead Credit 

Senator Cook: 

I bel ieve less people should get more and not more people get less ! 

Raise the taxable values 100% should get 5400TV credit 
80% should get 4500TV 
60% should get 3600TV 
40% should get 2700TV 

20% should get 1800TV 

($120,000MV) 
($100,000MV) 

I ncrease the income on the lower end a nd reduce on top end . . . .  $18,000 income should be increased and  
the  $60,000 at top end should be decreased . . . .  
G ive more help to those that need it most ! 

Also NEED ASSET TEST - increase to $275,000 including value of home. That is a $100,000 increase. 

I am not hearing much complaint about the current system at least in Burleigh \Bismarck . . . . .  

Just my thoughts . . .  

Kevin 
Burleigh County Auditor\ Treasurer 

1 
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Prepared b y  the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Miller 

Februar y 4, 201 3 

PROPOSED AMEN DM EN TS TO SENATE B ILL NO. 2 1 7 1  

Page 2 ,  line 24, remove the overstrike over "/\ person is ineligible for the exemption under this 
subsecti.on if the value of the" 

Page 2,  remove the overstr ike over l ines 2 5  and 26 

Page 2, line 27, remove the overstrike over "homestead, exceeds" 

Page 2,  line 27, after "exceeds" insert "two hundred" 

Page 2, l ine 27, remove the overstrike over "seventy five thousand dollars, including the value 

ef-..afly" 
Page 2, line 28, remove the overstrike over "assets divested within the last three years." 

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 



SB2 1 7 1 - SUPPORT 
Monday March 1 1 , 20 1 3  

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
Josh Askvig - AARP N D 

jaskvig@aarp.org or 701-989-01 29 

Chairman Belter, members of the House Finance and Taxation Committee, I am Josh 
Askvig , Associate State Director of Advocacy for AARP North Dakota. We stand in support 
of SB2 1 7 1 .  

As you know, property taxes are the single most burdensome tax for many low-income and 
older homeowners. Many of our more elderly citizens have l ived in their  homes for a long 
time. As thei r property values have appreciated, so have their p roperty taxes. But many do 
not have the income to afford the yearly increases in  their property taxes while also 
meeting their basic needs for food, medicine and utilities. 

AARP Policy supports efforts for property tax relief provided in an equ itable manner to low­
and moderate-income homeowners and renters. AARP supports "circuit breaker" 
measures, l ike the North Dakota homestead p roperty tax credit. Circuit breaker programs 
offer property tax credits or homestead exemptions that decrease as income increases, 
resu lting in a more progressive tax system. Therefore, lower-income households receive 
greater tax relief than higher-income households. Further, these programs are specifical ly 
targeted to low- and moderate-income households. 

About 33 states and the D istrict of Columbia offer circuit breaker programs. Most of these 
provide tax relief to both homeowners and renters. Most of them are targeted to older 
homeowners and renters or provide more generous benefits to older homeowners and 
renters. Most circuit breaker programs are state-financed . 

The bi l l  before you wou ld implement the Governor's budget recommendation to expand 
the homestead tax credit to ensure more low- to moderate-income residents can access 
this beneficial and important property tax relief program. We especially l ike the provisions 
that increase the current sliding scale for relief; this fits with AARP policy that as you r 
income is  higher you r abi l ity to pay is  higher and therefore your relief is lower. 

The original version of this legislation amended the statute to el iminate Social Security 
from the definition of " income" for the purposes of the homestead tax credit. We would 
encourage this committee to restore that language into this bi l l .  Attached to my testimony 
is a state fact sheet about Social Security and Medicare in North Dakota As you can see , 
92.7 percent of North Dakota seniors, or 90,700, received Social Security in 20 1 0. The 
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average annual benefit was only $ 1 2 ,600. Further, low- and middle-income seniors in  0:( 
North Dakota are even more reliant on Social Security's earned benefit, typically receiving 
77.5 percent of their individual annual income from Social Security. 

This expansion of the homestead tax credit is crucial, especially for those on fixed incomes 
who may be struggling to make ends meet. 

We strongly support SB2 1 7 1  and urge you to give it a DO PASS Recommendation . 



Why Socia l  Secu rity a n d  Medicare are Vital to N o rth 
Dakota's Seniors 

Seniors count on Medicare and Social Security benefits to provide them with the 
foundation of income and health care they need in  retirement, having contributed to these 
programs for years while working. In today's difficult economy-with widespread loss of 

retirement savings and home equity, coupled with rising health care costs-Social 
Security and Medicare are more vital than ever. 

SOCIAL S EC U RITY i n  North Dakota 

North Dakota seniors count on Social Security benefits earned through a lifetime of work 
• 

• 
• 

92.7 percent of North Dakota seniors, or 90,700, received Social Security in 201 0. The 
average annual benefit was only $ 1 2,600. 
Social Security accounted for 60.7 percent of the typical older North Dakotans' own income . 

Low and middle income seniors in North Dakota are even more reliant on Social 
Security's earned benefit, typically receiving 77.5 percent of their individual income 
from Social Security. 

Social Security plays an important role in North Dakota's economy 
• Social Security provided $ 1 .5 billion in benefits to North Dakotans in 2009. 

M EDICARE in  N o rt h  Dakota 

Medicare provides guaranteed health coverage, but out of pocket costs are high 
• 

• 

On average, beneficiaries from North Dakota spent $4,900 on out of pocket health care 
costs. 

For the typical North Dakota senior on Medicare, out of pocket spending for health care 
consumes 23 .7  percent of their income. 

Medicare provides peace of mind for North Dakota seniors 
• Nearly 99.8 percent ofNorth Dakota seniors, or 94,704, were enrolled in Medicare in 

2009. 
• In contrast, nearly 1 0.7 percent ofthe 60-{)4 year olds are uninsured . 

Medicare plays an important role in North Dakota's economy 
• The Medicare program spent $0.82 billion on health care services for North Dakotans in 

20 10. 



Engrossed Senate B i l l 2 17 1  
House F inance a n d  Taxation 

M a rch 1 1, 2012 
Pam Sharp, Di rector, O M B  

On beh a lf o f  G overnor D a l rymple, I a m  testifying i n  support of Engrossed Senate 

B i l l 2171 however, I a m  a sking that you consider fun d i ng this a d d it iona l 

H o meste ad Tax credit a t  the l evel proposed i n  the G overnor's Budget, which is 

$20 m i l l ion.  

The proposal a s  part of  the G overnor's budget incl u d e d :  

Exp a nded income brackets for com puting the credit; 

Removing the a sset test; 

Removing socia l  security i ncome from the income used in ca lcu l ating if a n  

a pp l icant q ua l ifies. 

Senate B i l l  2171 was a me nded in the Senate from its origi n a l  form a nd instead of 

rem oving the a sset test, the l i m it for the a sset was increa sed fro m $75,000 to 

$275,000. 

In a d d ition, E ngrossed Senate B i l l  2171 inc ludes soci a l  secu rity i ncome i n  

ca lcu l ating a n  a pp l ica nt's e l igib i l ity whereas t h e  G overnor's  proposa l exc luded it. 

The funding for the $20 m i l l ion incl uded in the G overnor's  b udget was inc l uded in  

H ouse B i l l 1006, the a ppropriation b i l l  for the Tax Department. The House 

Approp riations Com mittee removed the $20 m i l l i o n  of fu nding for this add itio n a l  

cre d it because t h e  pol icy b i l l  w a s  o n  the Senate s i d e  a nd t h e  fun d i ng was o n  the 

House side. At this point, there is no funding for this bi l l  a nywhere. 

M r. Chairman, we bel ieve the homestead tax cre dit is a very va l uab le  a nd 

i mporta nt for o u r  e lderly popu lation. We do prefer that the asset test be 

removed a nd soci a l  security income be exc luded as p roposed in the Governor's 

b udget. 



Testimony of Jon Godfread 
Greater North Dakota Chamber of Commerce 

SB 2 1 7 1  
MaTch 1 1 , 20 1 3  

Greater North Dakota Chamber 

Mr. Chairman and members ofthe committee, my name is Jon Godfread and I am here 

today representing the Greater North Dakota Chamber of Commerce, the champions for business 
in N orth D akota. Greater North Dakota Chamber is working on behalf of our more than 1 , 1 00 
members, to build the strongest business environment in North D akota. Greater North Dakota 
Chamber also represents the N ational Association ofManufacturers and works closely with the 
U.S.  Chamber of Commerce. As a group we stand in support of SB 2 1 7 1 .  

To provide some background the Greater North Dakota Chamber was the primary 

association that led the charge in defeating Measure 2 in the last primary election, that Measure 

would have abolished property taxes in North Dakota. We intimately understand the property 

tax issues in our state and were a part of numerous debates and conversations surrounding this 

topic. We heard from owners of all classes of property and relied heavily on our members to 
defeat that measure. 

We support SB 2 1 7 1  as part of the larger property tax reduction package. Addressing 
and expanding the current homestead exemption for elderly and disabled citizens in our state 

addresses one of the concems raised in the measure 2 discussions. Our position has not changed 

in that property tax relief needs to include all classes of property, however this is targeted relief 
granted those we are often the most concemed about. This measured expansion of the 
homestead exemption we believe fits into the larger tax relief package. 

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you today in support of SB 2 1 7 1 .  I would 
be happy to answer any questions. 

Champions�� Business 

PO Box 2639 P:  701-222-0929 
Bismarck, ND 58502 F: 701-222-1611 

www.ndchamber.com 



Prepared by the Office of 
State Tax Commissioner for the 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
March 1 1 , 201 3  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2 1 7 1  

Page 3 ,  line 6 ,  after "20 1 2" insert ", for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable years 
beginning after December 3 1 ,  201 3 ,  for mobile home taxes" 

Renumber accordingly 



Prepared by the Office of 
State Tax Commissioner for the 

House Finance and Taxation Committee 
March 1 1 , 2013 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2171  

Page 3 ,  line 6 ,  after "20 1 2" insert ", for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable years 
begim1ing after December 3 1 ,  201 3 ,  for mobile home taxes" 

Renumber accordingly 



1 3. 8 1 78.02001 
Title. 

Prepared b y  the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Dockter 

Ma rch 26, 201 3 

P ROPOSED AMEND M ENTS TO ENGROSSED S ENAT E BILL NO. 2 1 7 1  

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after the first " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "Subsection" with "Subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after the first " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "thirty-four" with "thirty" 

Page 2 ,  line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 1 ,  replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 2 ,  replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "two hundred" 

Page 2, line 28, overstrike "seventy-five" and insert immediately thereafter "three h undred" 

Page 3, after line 4, insert: 

"5. For the purposes of this section: 

a .  "Dependent" has the same meaning it  has for federal income tax 
purposes. 

b .  "Homestead" has the same meaning as provided in section 47- 1 8-0 1 . 

c. " Income" means income for the most recent complete taxable year 
from all sources, including the income of any dependent of the 
applicant, and including any county, state, or federal pub lic assistance 
benefits , social security, or other retirement benefits, and eighty 
percent of social security benefits , but excluding any federal rent 
subsidy, any amount excluded from income by federal or state law, 
and medical expenses paid during the year by the applicant or the 
applicant's dependent which is not compensated by insurance or 
other means. 

Page No. 1 1 3 . 8 1 78.02001 



d .  "Medical expenses" h a s  the same meaning as it  h a s  for state income 
tax purposes, except that for transportation for medical care the 
person may use the standard mileage rate allowed for state officer 
and employee use of a motor vehicle under section 54-06-09. 

e .  "Permanently and totally disabled" means the inability to engage in 
any substantial gainful activity by reason of any medically 
determinable physical or mental impairment w hich can be expected to 
result in death or has lasted or can be expected to last for a 
continuous period of not less than twelve months as established by a 
certificate from a licensed physician or a written determination of 
disability from the social security administration . "  

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 1 3 . 8 1 78.02001 
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!/pv ; 1 '1, 2- o T3 Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Counci l  
staff for Representative Carlson 

March 201 3 
f) J_ VV}e M 

SUMMARY OF WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT IJ . 9(,;2?- dootJ 
AND WORKFORCE TRAINING FUNDS - 201 3.-1 5 BIENNIUM 

(As of Crossover) 

Workforce development is the education and 
training of individuals provided by school d istricts, 
higher education institutions, and state and federal 
govern ment agencies. Major state agencies 
partnering to provide workforce development and 
workforce training throughout the state include the 
North Dakota University System,  Department for 
Career and Technical Education, Department of 

H uman Services, Job Service North Dakota, and 
Department of Commerce. The following is a 
summary of the funding included in the agencies' 
201 3- 1 5  budgets, as of crossover, for workforce 
development and workforce training, excluding any 
educational training provided as general coursework 
by the U niversity System and any educational training 
by school districts: 

General Specia l  
Agency Fund Funds 

SB 201 6 - Job Service North Dakota 
Workforce 20/20 - This is a state-funded job training program $ 1 , 541 ,9 24 
designed to assist North Dakota business and industry in retraining 
and upgrading workers' skills to meet demands brought about by 
the introduction of new technologies and work methods into the 
workplace. Funding assists primarily with tuition and travel costs. 

Trade adjustment assistance - This program provides special job 
training, job ·search assistance, relocation, and related services to 
workers who become unemployed as a result of foreign 
competition. The program provides for reemployment services and 
funds to assist workers in returning to suitable employment. 

Job opportunities and basic skills (JOBS) training program - This 
program 'is designed to assist individuals receiving temporary 
assistance for needy iamilies (T ANF) to transition from welfare to 
work and .self-sufficiency. This program is provided under contract 
with the Department of Human Services. The funding reflected is  
a lso included in the amount reported for the JOBS training program 
under the Department of Human Services. 

(:f) Workforce Investment Act - The Workforce Investment Act is 
designed to increase occupational skills attainment, employment, 
retention, and earnings of participants through program activities 
resulting in improved quality of the workforce, reduced welfare 
dependency, and enhanced productivity and competitiveness of the 
nation. 

Funding from the U .S. Department ot' Labor, for SkiiiBuildND, a 
demonstration grant to help train workers for jobs in the oil industry 
and building trades. This grant targets population sectors with 
higher unemployment challenges (veterans and Native Americans) 

New jobs training program - This program is designed to provide 
incentives to businesses and industries that are expanding 
employment opportunities or locating employment opportunities 
within the state. 

$516 ,7 24 

Federal 
Funds Total 

$ 1 ,541 ,9 24 

$200,000 200,000 

1 ,627 ,821 1 ,627 ,821  

1 0,877 ,826 1 0,877 ,826 

1 ,274,21 3 1 ,27 4,21 3 

516,7 24 

Subtotal - Job Service North Dakota $ 1  ,541 , 9 24 $51 6 ,724 $ 1 3,979 ,860  $ 16 ,038 ,508 

SB 2018 - Department of Commerce 
Division of Workforce Development - This is funding for support of 
the Department of Commerce Division of Workforce Development. 
The division is responsible for identifying current and emerging 
workforce issues in the state, developing a coordinated response to 
issues raised by North Dakota workforce delivery system partners, 
and identifying and recommending responses relating to gaps in the 
workforce delivery system. 

Salaries and wages 

Operating expenses 

Workforce enhancement grant 

Operation intern 

$9 1 8 ,551 

1 ,854,29 6 

2,000,000 

1 ,500,000 

$1 25,000 
$ 185,650 $ 1 , 1 04 ,201 

205,59 6  2 , 184 ,89 2 

2,000,000 

1 ,500,000 

. 



1 1 .9085.01 000 

Agency 
Workforce state commission grant 

Other grants 

SB 2218 - Department of Commerce 

2 

General 
Fund 

3,500,000 

Workforce development grants - This funding is provided to the 5,000,000 
tribally controlled colleges .through the Department of Commerce. 
The grants may be used .for development programs to provide 
workforce .training or .for assisting any North Dakota student at the 
college to establish a new business. 

Subtotal - Department ofCommerce $14 ,77 2;847 

SB 2019 - Department .for Career and Technical Education 
Workforce training contracts - This is funding provided to the state's 
two-year higher education institutions .. assigned primary 
responsibility·'for workforce ·training in their ·  respective quadrant to 
develop the delivery system for needed training. 

HB 1012 - Department of Human Services 
JOBS training program - This program is designed to assist 
individuals receiving TANF to transition from welfare ·to work and 
self-sufficiency. This program is provided under contract with :Job: 
Service North Dakota, Community Options for Residential and 
Employment Services, Inc., and Turtle Mountain Employment and 
Training. 

Basic employment skills training (BEST) program - This;program· is 
intended to provide individuals participating in the ·$upplemental ' 
nutrition assistance program with job-seeking and retention skills. 
The program is operating in Cass and Burleigh Counties. 

$3,000,000 

Special 
Funds 

Janual)r 201 1 

Federal 
Funds 

1 ,200,000 
Total 

1 ,200,000 

3,500,000 

5,000,000 

$125,000 $1 ,591 ,246 .. $1 6 ,489 ,09 3  

$2,600,000 $5,600,000 

$8 ,174,472 8 ,174,472 

189 ;'580 '189 ,580 

Subtotal - Department of Human Services $3,000,000 $2 ,600,000 $8 ,364,052 $1 3,9 64,052 

Total funding for workforce development and workforce training in $ 19 ,314',771 
201 3-15 agency budget as of crossover · · · · 

'$3,241 ,724 '$23)9 35;158 $46;491 ,653 
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SB 2171 options.xlsx 

SB 2171 Change Brackets 2.xlsx 

Brackets 

Taxable value 

If your income including SS is: is Reduced by 

$0 - $27,000 100% 

$27,001 - 30,000 80% 

$30,001 - 33,000 60% 

$33,001 - 36,000 40% 

$36,001 - 39,000 20% 

Additional Biennium Cost $9,912,000 

SB 2171 Change Brackets 3.xlsx 

Brackets 

Taxable value 

If your income including SS is: is Reduced by 

$0 - $22,000 100% 

$22,00 1 - 26,000 80% 

$26,001 - 30,000 60% 

$30,001 - 34,000 40% 

$34,001 - 38,000 20% 

Additional Biennium Cost $7,771,000 

SB 2171 Change Brackets 4.xl�x 

Brackets 

Taxable value 

If your income including SS is: is Reduced by 

$0 - $26,000 100% 

$26,001 - 30,000 80% 

$30,001 - 34,000 60% 

$34,001 c 38,000 40% 

$38,001 - 42,000 20% 

Additional Biennium Cost $16,998,000 

SB 2171 Change Brackets S.xlsx 

Brackets 

Taxable value 

If your income including SS is: is Reduced by 

$0 - $28,000 100% 

$26,001 - 32,000 80% 

$32,001 - 36,000 60% 

$36,001 - 40,000 40% 

$40,001 - 44,000 20% 

Additional Biennium Cost $17,822,000 

SB 2171 Change Bracket� 6.xlsx 

Brackets 

Taxable value 

If your income including SS is: is Reduced by 

$0 - $28,000 100% 

$28,001 - 31,000 80% 

$31,001 - 34,000 60% 

$34,001 - 37,000 40% 

$37,001 - 40,000 20% 

Additional Biennium Cost $13,209,000 



Prepared by Legislative Intern Justin Hagel for 
Senator M iller 

April 30, 201 3  

PROPOSED AM ENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE B I LL NO. 2 1 7 1  

I n  lieu of the amendments adopted b y  the House as printed on pages 1 1 1 4 and 1 1 1 5 of the 
House Journal, Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2 1 7 1  is amended as follows: 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  after " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, replace "Subsection" with "Subsec tions" 

Page 1 ,  line 4, after " 1 "  insert "and 5" 

Page 1 ,  line 5, replace "is" with "are" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 6, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 20, replace "twenty-six" with "twenty-two" 

Page 1 ,  line 2 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 1 ,  replace "thirty" with "twenty-six" 

Page 2, line 2, replace "thirty-four" with "th irt,y" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "thirty-four" with "th irty" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "thirty-eight" with "thirty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 1 ,  replace "th irty-eight" with "thi rty-four" 

Page 2, line 1 2 , replace "forty-two" with "thirty-eight" 

Page 2, line 26, remove ", excluding the" 

Page 2, remove line 27 

Page 2, line 28, replace "homestead, exceeds two hundred seventy-five" with "exceeds five 
hundred" 

Renumber accordingly 
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